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MANAGEMENT'S BISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overview of the Financiel Statements

The discussion and analysis is iniended 10 serve as an introduction to the Cin™s basic
financial tatements. The City’s basic financisd statemients comprise thres compoasnts:

»  Government-wide financial siatements
+  Fund finaceial statements.
+  Notes1o the fnancial statements.

Gevernment-wide Financial Statenents
The government-wide financial statements are desigoed to provide readers with a broad
ovenview of the Cit’s finances, in a manner simifar (o a private-sector business, The
statement of net position presents information ca all of the Ciy™s assets and Tizbilities,
with the dilference between the fwo reported as net position.  Over Lime, increases or

dacreasas in net pasition may serve as 3 useful indicator of whether the finantial positien
of the City is impeoving or detericrating

The statement of alivitics preseats infarmalion showing bow the government's net
pasition changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are
repotad 25 £2an as the underlying event giving rise 10 the changs occurs, regwdless of the
tizing of related cadh flows. Thus, reveness znd expenses are repvied in this statensent
for some items that will only resalt in cash flows in futwe fiscal periods, e.g, depreciation
and eamed bert trused vacation Jeave.

The goverranert-wids financial statements arz divided into two categonics, govemnwolal
and business-type activities. The governmental aclivities of the Cily intlude general
sovernnxrd, administritive senices, finskisl senvices, police, fire, public works,
comiunity development and cenxtery. The business-type activities of the City include
wwaker, nadtenater, sener ¢allection and rchabilitation, snilation, fiber oplic senvices and
related support depantments which compeise the Utitity Fond. The City does not have any
conpanent units, e.g, where the City Bas control over the incoms and expenses of ths
enlity.

The povernment-wide financial watements can be found oa pages 21 2nd 22 of thisreport.
Fund Financial Statensents

A fundd is a grouping of refated azcounts that is used o maintain controd over resources
which have been segrepated for specific activilies or objectives. The City, like other state
and local govemmenls, uses fund sccounling (o ¢nsure and demanstrate complianse with
finance-rzlatad begal requiremeats. Al of the funds of the City can be divided into three
categories: govemmental funds, proprictary funds and fMuciary funds.

City of Franklin, Kentucky
Mapagement's Discustion and Anafy sy
Years Faded June 30, 1016 and 2215

As management of the City of Frankiin (City) we offer readers of the City’s financial datements
1his narzalive oven iew and analysis of the financial sctivilies for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2016, The information contained in this MD&A should be considered in conjunction with the
information coolained in the Accountants” Repants and Financizl Statemants and Supplementary
information.

Finoncial Highlights

o Total assets and deferred omtiows of the City exeeedad its habilities and defered
inflows at the close of the modt receat fiscaf year by $33,934,951 and 832,274,375
for the prier fiscal year,

»  Asofthe closg of the current fiscal year, the Ciy’™s govemmental solivities repovted
ending net position of $13,680,230 which includes unrestrictsd net position of
$1,071,671. Respectively for the prior fiscal year, 512,333,721 of nef position and
($1,428,749) of unrestricted pet position. Ja FY 2013, the most significant cause for
the change in uwnrestricted not position was the implementation of GASH 68,
reganding the reconding of 1he City"s net pencion lishility, discusced in length in
Hote 9 of the Financial Satements. 1a FY2016, the most significant cause for the
increase in wrestricted net position was the sale of the City”s Fiber Optics Peogram
1o the Frankifa Electric Plant Boans for $2,500,000.

o At the end of the current fiscal year, vasssigned fund balance for the general fond
was $4,677,623 with $2,572,104 for the pior fiscal year,

o  Forthe year eadad Junz 30, 2016, total debt decreased by a net ameunt of $363,562
during the year. For the peior fiscal year, total debt decreasad by $337.467 during
the year dus to principal reductions

o The City had tetal sevenus of §13,833, 558 for the year ended Junz 30, 2016 nhich
includes: progran revenoes (Charges for senvice) of $7.071,001, operating grants
and contributions of $436 832, and gencral revenoes of $4,323,725. The City had
total evpenses of 11,949,941 for the year ¢ndied Juna 30, 2016, Comparatively, the
City h2d total resenues of $12.8358,683 for the year ended June 30, 3013 which
inclodes: program revenues (charges for senice) of $6.569,197, operating grants
angd coatnibutions of $330,593, capital granis and contributions of $50,000 end
geoeral revenoes of $3,908,883. The City had total axpenses of 811,303,379 for the
year ended Tune 30, 2013,

o The City's total capital outlays weee $2,498482 for the current fiscal yeor and
$926,997 for the prior fisedl yess. For the Goveramental Funds, capilal owlzys
were $560,436 for the corrent fiscal year and $138.435 for the priac fiscal year. For
the Proptictary Funds, capital outlays for the cument fissal year were $1,938 046
and the prioe fiscal year of $788,562

Gevernmental Funds

Mest of the City's basie senices are includad in the governmental fund ype, These funds
use the modifiad scerust secounting basks, which meacures cash and all other financial
ass2ls that can readily be convertad to cash. The geperal fund, specid revenue fonds and
pemanent funds are 2t govemmental iype funds

Proprietary Funds

Propriztary furds, in genersd, chage customars for the sarvices that are provided, These
funds nse a long-term financial accomting approach, full sccmal basis and pravide
additional information in the statement of cash flows.

Netes ta the Finandal Statements

The notes pros ide additionat information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund finzncial statements. The notes 1 the financial
Hatements can be finmed on pages 31 through 72 of this repart

Government-vide Anafrsis

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 34 reporting mode]
was implemented in fiscal year 2004,

As noted eardier, net position may serve, over lime, as a useful indicator of a govemnment's.
financial positicn. In the case of the City, assets exceeded lishilities by $33,934,951 for
1he current fiscal year and $32,274,373 at the close of the prior fiscal year.

By far the largest portion of the City™s net position {85%3) is its investment in capilal assats,
g, land, buildings, machinery and equipment less any related cutstanding debl weed to
acquire thase assels  These capilal assels arg used (o poovide servi¢es to eitizens
consequenty, these aseds are pod available for futwre speading  Only the uncestricted nat
position of the City may be used to mect Ui govemnannl's engoing obligatians to citizens
and craditors.



2016 wis

Net Pealthsn Net Paorition
Governmental  Busdness.ype Total Governmentsl  Builncu-type Tctal
Actiritles Acthvities Adtivitiey Activities
Cerrent 42 other 355ty § 10773437 § 5551013 £16.135,430 Currect and othey azsets § &M E71 $127154%4
Capatal assets 14374330 19.293,.33) 33562901 Cpital aasets T4 693 35.912,331
Tetsl assets 25051787 214832 365 43935332 Total asscts 21631364 25951 45 43642 813
Difered ameyant on refunding bords -_— 115227 115217 Difersed amoant oo refimydm g bos — 121,762 121,762
CERS pension cantnbalicns 945494 23,651 123313 CERS pensicn ccntiilntiogs 513815 143647 471,492
Total deferred cotlons 245494 (R8T 1.354378 Total deforred amtflon s 3815 271 Lt 15234
Loag-tenm Laxlities outstando g 4453692 4762450 9.216,142 Loag-tam lishilities cotst izding 4,858,141 3,050,271 10003 412
Net CERS pensing Lty 328013 1490118 G013 Net CERS pension Lizhility 4033692 LLE2 3053 5,186,001
Onher iahditic 612 597 44347 1356944 Ouher liatilities 552641 837640 1420281
Total liztiditias 4,334,300 692,915 1.381.212 Toital lizhitiies 9.454.474 7160220 16.614.694
CERS <t pension mvestment differonve 33,749 2313 431,352 CERS et penision invesment diference 427014 121536 .00
Total deferred feflons 33,249 9313 43,362 Totdl deferral inflvas 427014 121,934 343.00r)
Net porsitioa )
MNet investmers in capita} assets 13,993,901 15,243,615 29,141,516 Wet iavestment in capital asscts 12,734,533 17,333,358 30,033,241
Restricted Restricted 1007587 L131,0855 2,188,642
Ynpendahle - Highways & Strects 175,277 — 1752717 Unmestricted 0 1433374%) 1426241 2508
Enperdahle - Deld zanive & —_ 1,183,957 LIRS
capital astivity Tetal et position 129 £ 19940634 3322740758
Nogexpendible - Perpetuy! Care 505,381 — 379381
Yrrestricted L0671 LB | 291378
Total net pas: 5123 § [8.23472 £1191455
7.
s
2016 1015
Chawepes In Net Posttien Chanpes in Net Poshicn
Governerntal  Busioesr-tipe Governmental  Business{ype
Activities Activities Tota) Acthvithes Activities Tota)
Revenues Revenues
Frogamevenes Progre=m reverss
Chasges for savices £ 1,259 $ 3314070 & TOTLO0I Cherges for senvicas $ 1024363 $ 35H3 § 630097
Operating grants end contritaticns 436,83 - 135832 Opersting grants znd contritanions 130,598 - $
Capilal grants and cantribtions - - - Cagpital grovts 2od contributions - 50000 30,000
Genera revennes General reveroes
Property taves 932101 - 932,101 Property taxes Q4,120 - 440,72
Duompaticasl fees 2,182.981 - 2,182,931 Qecupstivaal fees 2073,34H2 - 207,342
Inaranse premive fees 1518542 - 1518542 Insu: promium fees 1513803 - 1,512,835
Frarihise fees BARM4 - 84,834 Franchise fees 100,038 - 100,095
DBrusiress license fees 45,083 - 745,058 Business [kense fees 40,107 - 40,107
Trterest incomme 34573 584U 43,40 Loterest income 4373 6,663 11,41
Miscellincons inveme 334,970 L3044 452014 Miscellaeends inome 412,452 113,719 326,211
Gain (loxs) ea the sale of assets { 40.278) 302023 261,743 Giia ca the sle of assets 2,51 L3 3,566
Trizsfes 2 300000 2.500,000) - Tranders 4 28] 08y 246,103 =
Total revernes and transfers 10433 373 37497 131,831 338 Total reverises snd framsfers 6898 355 506324 12 B33 £33
Expenses Exprrsen
Gereral goverrmwent 1,829,143 - 1,829,143 General gavemment 1,590,309 - 1,390,300
Public safesy 1524,337 - 2324387 Public safety 1210640 - 2,210,640
Tublic senvices 1417.270 - 1417270 Publis senvives 1372622 - 1,272,622
Community & coltuzal 678,036 - 618036 Commimty aed culturat 634,836 - 635,836
Tnterest evpeine ca koag-temm debt 12235 i22313 251,893 Interest expense on long-term Jett 133,341 133,335 271,83
Water sl wastea 12 - 4,350.694 $38),694 Water end wastewatar - 4053411 4033412
Sanititioa - 863518 BAL318 Sanjtitioa - BH0NE 2HNR
Fiber Optic o = = Frber Opiie = 531645 531643
Total experses 6371 216 5378335 11949941 Tetal eaperses 353748 5603631 11,503,379 .
i
Change la pad pyition 1511361 18BT) 153367 Changz i net poition 002617 352693 1333304
Net penition, beginning of year 12,133,721 190654 LIS Net position, beginning of year 15412916 poAp REL) 35,244,071
Priar period adjusment (___ 180854y ( 42187)  223041) Change fn accounting priziphe-
GASB463 4IRS _LIR3IOH (3323000
Net positian, begianiog of year, restated 12152857 19873467 _ 32053.334
Net position, beghbanlag of year, nelated 11.331.11 19587961 30919071
Net poaition, end of year $156909%0  FiRas72] 33934951
Nel paition, endolyear 212333321 £19. 8§ 3075375

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds
Governmental Fumds

The facus of the City's govemmmental funds is to provids information on neartem intlayws,
outflons and halances of spendabls resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
City's finacing requirements  [n panticular, furd balance may serve as a wsefid measure
of a government's net tesounces available for spending for program purposes at the end of
the fiseal year

% 9.




As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmizntal funds reported @ ending
fund balznez of $6,847.510 compared to $3,598,592 for the price fiscal year, The City's
major sources of revemues are fsurance pemium fees, paytoll occupational fees and
property tases. The fund balances primarily represents the sccumulation of revenuss in
2xcess of expenditeres nat reimbursed by finding sources.

General Fund Budgatary Highlights

Differences betmeen the original budget and the final amendad bindget were approximately
$288,652 increase inrevenue and 5206,570 decrease in appropriations which can be briefly
surmrrarizad as follows:

+ Both inssrance fees and cocopationd fees were dighlly strenger than
anficipated in (e ceiginal budget This is duz, in pait, 1 an increase in overall
emplojment within our municipality. Unemployment has decreased from 4.6%
in Noveniber 2015 to 3.5% in November 2016, Budgel 10 2ctual comparisons
reveal that, of the City’s top thirty employers, twendy one performed better than
anlicipated, based on three year historical rends. The City collected $37,000
maocs occupational taves than badzeted, $63,000 of which was generated from
our top thiry ¢emplayers Similar circumstances were poted reganding the
City's Jnsurance Preminmm fees. Of the Ciy’s top thinty inturance remitters,
twenty coe prodoced more premiums than anticipated, again basad on three
year historseal trends. The City collected 582,000 mare than budzgeted, almast
all of which related and increass in remiltances fiom the City's 10p insurance
remitlers. Property tax revenues were $70,03) mora than budseted, atmest all
of which rizted to a decreass in cur bad debt. The City has expanded its
collection efforts 23d, as a result, our hsd debt was substantially less than
anticipated  Additionally, the City's aleohol beverage sales, and related
regatatory fes, continne to increass quarter over quarter. Given how relatively
new this regulateny fee is, it is extremsly difficult 1o trend these fees, expecially
given the continued curve upw ands in aleohol sales.

o Rigk management evpanses nere increased as a result of the City's inerease in
legal cootractual senvices, specifically related o unselmbursed consultant
evpeases reganding the City’s most recent Comeast Franchise Fee negotiation

s The Police Department expeniceced another year of significant personnel
tumover. As a result, the personne] bidget reflected significant vaances, as
this tornaver was unanticipated.  Additionally, the process 1o hire police
pecsonne] conlinwes to increass in lenglh, ths creating a significant Bme gap
between officer turnover and correlating officer replacement

« The Citys Capital Qulizy appropriztions were inceeased as a direct resull of the
increass in shine mentionad revenues  Appropriations for capilal aquipment
were appeoved  Additienally, sppronimately $30,000 of budgeted capital
expenditures were deferred to FY2017, relating specifically to the tming of
required services and product delivery, thus czusing a 1 ariance between budget
0 actual expenditures

o Capital expenditutes for the instalfation of 5 new firs hydrants on 31W Sauth,
£26,000,

o Capital expenditures of $936,%09 for the replacemens of a water main 254
related service teps, specifically eatitled the “Strawbeay Lane™ project  This
project toak appraximately 3.5 vears to complete.

o Capita} expenditures of $TAL000 for impeorenients and additions to the
City's waste water system, specifically relsted to the 31W Scuth Sewer Line
Expansion,

o Capital expenditures of $218,800 for aquipment and vehicles for the Ciy's
water and wastewater system (repairs 19 the wastowater ueatment plant’s belt
Press, asenice bk and backboe for water distribution, new SCADA system
for the collections depatient, a streamiing current manitor for the wter
treatment plant, 2tc).

Major capital asset purchases during the prior fiscal year includs the follawing:
o Capital expenditres of $53,617 to install a pew roof on the Water Treatment
Plant’s Pump House and to compiele significant repairs a0d overhzuls to the
Plara’s High Seniee Pumps

o Capilal expenditures of $641,199 for improvements and mdditicns to the Ciy's
water and waste w Mer system,

« Capilal expeoditures of $32420 for equipment at the City’s Waste Water
Treatment Plant

+ Equipment usad by Street department of $22,060.

Vehicles for the Public Works Depariment of $17,305.
+  Cruisers for the Police Department of $34.864.

o Capital expenditures of $25,59) for improvements and additions 1o the Ciy’s
shoern W ater infrastnxture.

FLong-term Debt

The City had 53,663,723 in 1evenue bonds and capital lease obligations outstanding as of
Jung 30, 2016, which is a decrease of $843,362 rom the previous year. The Cigy made
principet payments of $861,769 during fiscal yoar 2016, In (he previous year, the City had
$9,403,523 in 1evenue boads and ¢apital kease obligations outstanding as of Junc 30, 2015,
which is a decrease of $85,933 from the previous vear. The City made principal payments
of $833,674 during fiscal year 2015,
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Tedal sevenues for the year were within acceptable parameters (within 4% of budged), in
tota!, with Gnal budzetary estimates while expenses were slighty f2ss than final budgetary
estimates (hy 3.1%). This relstes primaily to personnel changeover within the police
department and a deferral of capital purchases inta Fiscal Year 2017,

Proprictary Funds

Operating 1evenees of the City's propriztany funds increasad 4.8% from the prioe year to
$5,814,971. The City approved a 535 Water & Sewer rate increase, effective January 1,
2016, duz to the completion of a capital needs Utility Rates Study, discussed below under
Economic Factors The City afso fmplemented a 1.60% cost of living increass in the
Saitation Fund, pursusnt to the City’s garbage hauler coatract. Operating revenues from
Water and Wastewater increased by 9.4%% 10 $4,938,870 while operating revenuss from
Saftation nees increased 0.4% to $873,201. Operating ovpenses for Water &
Wastewater increased by 2.0% to $4,376,587 while opersting enpenses for Sanitation
senioes increased by 9% to $363,518. This decrease relstes directly ta the structure of the
garbage hauler contract. the cumment garbage hauler bills commercial customers dizectly, as
the prioz contracl required the City to b1l all residential and cammercial customers.

Capital Asset and Bebt Administration
Capital Assets

As of Tz 30, 2016, the City’s investment in capiual assets net of related debt for its
govenmental and businzss-fype activities was $29,147,516 2nd $30,088,241 as of hme 30,
2013, This investmenl in capital assets includes Lind, baildings, improvements, machinery
and equipment and streets.

Major capilal assat purchases during the coment fiseal yeaz incleds the foltowing:
o Gemneral Fund

o Capitzt Expenditures of $40,800 (o repaicieplsce windows at City Half as
well a5 replave capet

o Purchase of cruisers and related equipment for the Police Dhpanment of
£i43. 187

o Purckase of a Dump Truck by the City™s Public Wesks Depatment, $120,000.

© Investment in office equipmenl, finance depariment, furniture at the police
departmend. and <ity wide job casting softv are tolaling $49,900,

+  Franklin Municipal Utilities

o Capital expenditures of $21,000 1o repave the parking kot af the Water
Treatment Plant.
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Financial Anafysis of the City's Funds

As the City comphted the year, its governmentat funds reparted a combined fund balunce
of $6,847 310 at Juns 30, 2016, excluding capital assets and long-term debl Included in
this year's otal change in fund balance is an incrcass of $3,204,34 in the City™s General
Fund Fer the previous year, the City’s governmental funds repovted a combined fund
bolance of $3,598,392 at June 30, 2013, excluding capital assets and Jong-term dele
Included in [t year's total change in fund balssee was an increase of $640,576 in the
Cigy’s General Fund,

Manfified Approack to Infrastruclure

The condition of the Cily's roads is determined using its Road Management and Ingection
Program (RMIF). The road condition 3 rated from £ to 10D (OCT), with 100 being new or
recenlly paved,

Tt is the City’s palicy to assess the condition of 1hs roads every three years for cracks,
potheles, misalignment, drainsge condition and number of specific safety hazards. There
were no roads severely deficient in condition at June 30, 2016,

The City hss oot changed the measnwement scale used o assess and report the coadition of
it roads foc the past 10 years.

The City’s goal is to have ali roads at 90-100 OCl rating.

Eligible infrastructure assets are nod depecciatad, additions and improvenenls theceto are
capitalized and all ether outhays made for such assets are expensed in the period ingwred
ardy if requirements resarding asset management sysiem and preservation at condition
level are met.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgsts and Rates

In 2004 the City of Franklin was awarded a $1,000,000 grant from the US. Deparvaeat of
Cammerce, Economis Developasnt Admintstration ta aid in the costs of the canstruction
af a fibet aptie project The purpase of the project was to enhance scomamic development
and City services by providing a reliable, advanted tebtcommunication senice. Duwiing
fiscal year 2011-2012, (he City contraceed for the purchase and installstion of equipment,
the construction of the fiber cable and the splicing and testing of the systenr As of Jun:
30, 2013, the program was operaing within its third vear and the peogram reflected total
investment in eapital assets, iscloding iafrastruchore, buildings and cquipment, of
£2.501,249.

Effective July 1, 2015, hiowever, the Board of Commisstoners determined that it was in the
st interest of the City of Franklin, Kentucky to tonvey for Two Millica Five Hundred
Thousand Dottars (§2,330,000.00), 1a the Ekectric Plant Board the City of Franklin's fiber
optic system. The intended use of the fiber oplic system is to enhance the communities'
businesses and promate economic davelopment (o the benafit of all of the residents of
Franklin, Simpsan County, Kentecky. Funhber, the Electric Pimt Board of the City of
Franklin has persoane] and equipment better suited for the maintenance and operations of
the fiber oplic system.
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Given ibe significant costs relsted to a Municipality opesating a Fiber Optics Program, our
tond rating agency, Moody's Investment Senvices, fell concern over the finuacial rick that
the Fiter Program presented.  As a result, in October 2014, Moody's donngraded the
City's General Obligation Debt from an Al to an A3 and assigned 2 negative outlook. Asa
1esult of the above mentionad basinigs sabe, moving the fiber prograns ta an entity more
swited (o the fiber optics business, the City wis able to confer with Moody’s and was
granted the removal of e nagative outlook in Szptember of 2015, [Uis anticipated (hat,
given the finmeial performance of the City duriag FY2016, Moady's will reevafuste owr
finangial risk, or Lack thereof, and retnstare our eriginad rating of Af.

The Cily comtinues (o operate within a time of change and anticipated gromth. The Ciy’s
lesders have spent a [ot of time and <ffon focusing on the sastainability of the Ciby’s
infrastracture, such as nhat capital investments are required to nuintsin and rehabihilate
our current infrastrusfare as well as what areas of growth there are that the Cily needs to
expand our esisting water aod sener systems In Fiseal Year 2014 the City kicked off an
iz-depth Udlity Rate Study where we anshyzed the pressing needs of each department
within our Unlity Disision: Water Production, Water Distribution, & Waste Water
Treatment Within this study we identificd all capital investnients necessary 1o rehabititate
the City’'s cizrent water and sewer Lines, its treatrnent plants, and related equipmeat  Ezch
Department Head Mentified areas of nead and thess capilal improvements were
incorporated into this study so the City could alequately identify the most pressing areas of
intense meed  The Utility Rate Stody was incredibly valuable from many different
perspectives, fiom infrasinichee needs. to equipment needs, to a more detailed analysis of
our revenus base and selated operating expenditares.  Dudsg FYE 2015, the City
concluded this study 2nd ultimately adopted a five year capital improvement plan, as welt
a5 ideatified annual financial resources o be alloceted to cach deparmeat fov inffastiscture
rebabilitation and line replvements. This study elfectivedy correlated our pexds and the
telated financisl impact and identified the need for a utility rate increase, The Ciy's
clected body decided to implemint these rates increases in gradual, incremental amdounts,
over afive year periad, in efforts nol to overdy burden the City’s custorner base. These rate
changes were adopted by Ordinanee in Febroary 2015, These rates are scheduled to
jncrcase by 3% per year, effective Januery 1 of each ecakendar year,

Below is a trief summary of sonse of the arcas of evpansion and rehabilitation that the City
Fas identified thus Tar:

*  The City has reveatly completed a project related 1o the expansion of its existing
sewer lines. This project is providing senice 10 an asea that was annexed inte the
City south of Franklis in fiscal year 2013, extending all ibe way to the KY/TN
line, well past Exit 2 oa Intersixe 63, Fhis peoject, including 2ll engimeering
work, wis completed for a total codt of $775,000.

s The City's Waste Water Treaiment Dkpartmert has identified a lift station and
sub-basin that needs significant rehabilitation work, The expectation is thal Lhis
investment and improvement will decrease soms of the watee's ron off infilratian
inta the sevier systems as well as improve the averall systems operating capacity
for the ¢ilizens uting the sewer system within that sub-basin  This project is
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Outside of the City’s Water Ulifity Depariments there are mamy areas of growth and
expanston being experiznced within the City. Below is some discussion tegarding the
most significant ecohoenic changes that are significantly impacting the City and our
cammunity as a whole.

+ During Fiscal Year 2013, the City initiated a City-Wide Besutification Program
The program bega July 2012 with the hiring of a full time Cods Enforcement
Officer, and has since heen extremely proecdive in the effort to make noticeable
improvements ta the City with regards 1o blighted and ditzpidated stnctmes. To
date, thisty nine Bightad and ditapidated properties have been condemned by the
City with thirty coe of Lhess properiics having beea sabsequently dematished and
the lots cleared of ol material and debeis. There are currently five properties
which have baen condemnad and are pending 2ction These scthons are the result
af a combined effort by the City's Code Enforcement Officer and the CiyCounty
Plaoning and Zoning Office.

In efforts to ¢laharste en our property condsmnation process, we would ke w
note that oneg these dilapidsed sructures were removed from the property, then
the City typécally files a Hen against the property for the costs involved with the
reaoval. Orke a lien i3 fited apainst the propesty, then the City has the sbility to
foreclosg on the hen. Many times this leads o the City acquining the praperty. In
years past, tha City has sald vecant lots through an action typs precess or
donsted (he lofs to organizations 1o constnkt new howses. Even though the lots
were sold or wransfared, many times the City woald coatinue 10 incor costs
relzted to the property related to moning and maialdining the property.

I: FY2016, in 2a effort to reduce the City’s responsibility in maintaining vacant
properiies, a program vas devetoped to put thess properties back into productive
use anid oove again provide a tax base for City revesue, The program was titled 2
“Surplus Property Re-Usa Program™

Approximiztely tno Lmes per year, a list of City owned properties will be
evalustad and can be declared as “surplus propery™ by the Franklin City
Commission. Omee the lots are deemed as swrplus, Usn the City begins the
publication process by posting on the website, posting signs on the surplus
property lots, sherising in the local rewspaper and anoouncing at the Cigy
Commission mesting.

Community members are 2ble ta inquire abow a property and an informazion
packel is senl out 10 the community member by the Comaunity Development
Dizetor or the proposal informatien can be downlosded from the city website

The commustity member puts together a propasal for e propesty they are
interested in, following the guid:lines as staled in the packet  Onee the deadline
has passad, the propasals me gathered, evaluated for complateness and inclnded
on the agenda for the nevt Code Enforcement Board meeting.

teing completed in bwo phases. Phase [ was completed subsequent to year end,
for 8 tolal cost of $400,040. Phase [T is expectad to be campleted in FY2017 with
an estimated cost, incloding all engincering work, of $399,500. Additionally, the
City bas been awarded a Federal Grant, in the amoant of $97,000, 1o apply 1oward
the cost of this Phase [1 project.

The City has expericaced soae gronth toward the South of Franklin, related to its
recant anngsation of land all the way to the KY/TN line. Imtially, dwzing 1he
City’s Utility Rate Study, there were exvpectations that the south area of Franklin
will expericnee significant growth and expansion over the nend several yeas, I
1his were to occur, the City's analysis indicates that the cutrend sire of the sewer
line does not provide Lhe capacity nacessany to accommodate the kind of gronth
the City is aslicipating.  Therefare the City bepan revigwing and eniering into
peeliminay engineering discussions regarding replacement of the curent sewer
linzs, down the 31-W comidar, with newer, Jarger Tines that will be ablz to handlz
and sznice any growth within thal partfeulyr area of tomn.  This project,
including all engineering woork, has an estimated projoct cost of $9,000000 to
$312,000,000.

With that said, bowever, the City is experiencing significant granth throughout
the ¢ntire City, Alhough the criginal sste stody was fivused on anbicipated
infrastructsre needs toviard the south of town, as discnssed above, the City now
Feels it would be prudent 1o comphete a Muniipal Growth Study 1o better
anlicipate growth pettems in o ardd, in conjunction with economie development
patterns.  This study could shift the entire direction of the Cihy’s wility
infrastructure peeds and investments, This study is expected to be completed
within the fieat 3-5 years

The City’s Water Distribution Departmient is working within its founth vear of a
subsstantial water main replecement initigtive.  Cumently, the Ciiy is working
toward replacing all of its 27 gah antzed water lints with new, sutainsble water
lines. Ths expeciation is that the seplxcement of this old and comeded lins will
provids belter water senvice o the City s customers a3 well a3 reduce zome of the
anmal waler Joss that the City experiences. Additianally the City has begun
replacing these lines in-house, rather than conlracting the projects cut.  This
allows the City to take advantaze of its own ymergy and cooperation among the
City™s departments, beceuse what ooe department does always directhy impacts
another, therefore T provides for more tmely reaction to any project relsted
intidentes. Additionally there is a major cost savings realizad by completing the
profect in-house rather than paying a premium for contracted services. The
disiribution depariment’s mod recent pooject, the Strawbemy Lane Project, was
completed at a cost of H36.900. The City has three smalke dine replacement
projacts expected to be completad by FY2018,

Along the same lines as the City’s Water Distribution Water Line Replacement
Tnitiative, the City is cemenily zeviening its Waste Water Colkection System’s
maintenance and repfacentent neads with the intenticn of heginning to reserve
funds, of approximately $300,000 znnually, for an annual maintenawe amd
replacement initiative withia the Wastewater Treatment Department.
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The transfer of properiy will be based en the best evaluated use of the property,
time frams ta complete improvements and compliance with applicable codes To
be considered for these propecties, the < ity member submitting the
proposal mist be ¢oment on City laxes and have no exdsting lizns on any propory
currenily owned in the City of Franldin - They ¢annol have hsd any code
vialations that resulted fn a citation being issued on any praperties withia the City
of Fzanklin wilhin the last hwo years. The City of Franklin reserves the tight to
reject any o ali propasals submitted.

At the Cods Enforcemienl Board mecling Lhe proposal is discussed and sooring
writeria is completed by ik Boord A recommendation will be made by the Code
Enfoecement Boued to the City Commission. The City Commission witl zdopt a
resolulion anthorizdng the transfer of property.

Oz a determination is made by the City Commission, the Community
Denelopment Directar will contact the community member and work with them
to transfer the deed

Once a deed 35 ransfered, the Community Developmant Director will monitor
the progress of the property Improvements and ensure the new owner maintains
the property and builds as deseribed in their proposal.

10 a propesty owner does not follow through on the develapment of the property as
stated in trir propasal then the Code Enforcement Board will review the situation
and have the oplion to lake the ownership of 1he propedty.

This iniliztive is unique to the City and it's cutting edge, the fist of s hpe. The
City is excited 1o the implemienting this program and is excited to see how this
changes our community davelopment and <lean up cfforts.

Fou the past several years, City management has idenlifiad the need for ihe City 1o
rehabilitate its stormmater system Cib’s stommwater system is peovided
protect the watenways and fand in the City of Franklin by managing flocding and
to benclit the natural envirenment, The City felt a3 of (ke cost of designing,
develaping, improving, opersting, maintainisg, and monitoring the stoemuater
system required in the City of Franklin should therefors be allocated 10 the extent
practicable o all peoperty ownses and 'or ogcupants of land hased on their impact
on the sormn ater systear. Tn oeder to provide reveaue ta fund those costs and 1o
faicky allocate those costs, a Stormmeater Managemenl Fund was established and
adopted into Okdinanz, and was implemented effective July 1, 2015 Al
revenues collectad for the pupose of stormwater management from user fees,
grands, posmit fees, and other chages colicctad uader this program, will be
depasited inta this fund and all dishursements from the Fund will be for the
purpases of the following:

i The atquisiion by gift, purchase, or condemnation of real property,
and interests therein, meces: to constnxct, operate. and maintain
stormw ater management (acilities.
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i. All costs of adminfstration and implementation of the stormwater
management progrant, iocluding 1he establishment of reasonable
cpration and capital reserves to mct budgered, vnanticipated or
EMIULEIKy SIOMIT Aer MAAgemeat requirements.
Enginezring and desipn, debt service and relatad financing expenses,
conslruction costs for naw facilities, and enlargemant or improvement
of exisling facilities

iv. Operation and maintenance of the stormwater system.

v. Muoitoring, sarveillance, @ inspection of stormmater contiel

deniees.

Vi, Water quality monitaing and water quality programs.
vii. Retrofitting developed areas for pollution control.
viii. Inspection and enforcemnt activilies.

ix Costs of public education relared to stommw er and related issnes.

< Billing and administrative costs.

xi. Other activities which are reasonably required

il

As of June 30, 2016, the City has accumilated a fund halaneg of $130,00
within this program.

Thete Bas been significant activity within our Franklin-Stmpson Industrial
Authonity throughout the vear. During the past year there were four indusinal or
commercial businesses thit expanded their existimg operstions, investing aver
$2 400,000 in ¢2pital and ceeating mere than 115 new jobs.  Addflionally, there
were seven industrisl ar commercial businesses that located their business in our
Insdhustrial Pasks, investing over $38,700L000 in capilzl and zre expecting to create
over 24 new jobs. In FY2015 a German-owned sutomotive parts meker, Fritz
Wiater North America LP, announced that it planned o build & $193.7 million
foundry and pradaction facility In Franklin, bringing 343 jobs to Simpsea County,
Kenlweky, Company execulives are currently building a 240,000 square-foot
facility in the Wilkey Noath Industrial Pask. Construction staed eardy in 2016
and casting and machining of dise balie rotors is expected lo begin in the summer
of 2017,

For many years the City has parlicipated along with the Commoawealth of
Kentuchy in the state’s Kentechy Business Incentive {KBI) Program. This
program provides state income tax credils of 3% of exch qualified ¢employee’s
wages (ie. 4 of the state’s incomg 1ax) to new and exiing agribusinesses.
regionil and national beadquarters for certain businzas operations, manufactoring
companies, and non-refail service or technology related companies that lacate or
expand operations in Kentocky by rebating this monzy back to the company 1o
assist with starting or expanding the business This credit is available to the
comtpany for ten (10) years. As past of this participatioa, the bocal govemasent
swhich is the situs for (he business is required to forego collection of a total of 1%
occupationt tases on, essentiafly, the base oumber of jobs created under the KB
progiam for each gualified cmploy e¢, for a pediod of 10 years. In ether words, the
state coatributes 334, end one or move local governmeal(s) separately or togetnr
must comtribute a tolal of 196 Altamutively, the local govermument can make 2
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full time labar which is interpreted as an overall sign of stabilization within our
local cconamy. We are excited 1o se¢ our commmify’s unemplosmenl Tales
maintain 2 stable Jevel, rates decreasing sfghtly — from 4.6%% in Novemher 2013
to 3.5% in November 2216; however, this rate is «ill behow the state 1ate of 4.0%%
and the national rate of 4.4%%.

ons time “in fizu of " coatribulion in an woounl that apponimates the 1%
contribution and oids the compeny, sich as proniding water and sewer
improvements, et¢. The City of Franklin and Counly of Simpson have agreed to
patticipate in the KBI program. Although (his bas been a wooderful program for
industrial and commercial expunsion within e Conmamyealth, the City’s hag, ta
date, exclusively providad the local 195 “match,” whick is beginning 1o create
seme finaneial hardship on the City given that hasically all industisl growih and
expaasion will mot generate amy new eccupstional fee revenue for the City for a
period of up to 1ea (10) vears whilz cansing the City to provids senvices as regutar
costs. Tn the fast year, the City reached an agreement with the Simpsea County
Fiscal Court, via an intetfocal agreement, wherein the Fiscal Court will begin to
provide its entire .75% occupational fee per employee (with the City providing
.25%) in an <ffort to lessen the financial impect on the City and shae this
burden. When the City and the County have reachied an equal tofad contribution
amowmt in the KB program a5 a whole (ixloding the amownts the City has
contribmted in the pait), the City and County will thereafter each contribute an
equal 50% per gualificd emplayee por local govemmental eotity. At that point.
the City will realizz a nel 30% oecupational fee for the ten (10) year participation
peried, instead of receiving nothing, Obviswsly, fhis will have a positive
economic impact on the City going forvand.

Thring TY2017, the City reseived natice that its third largest emplover, Harman
Intemstiony] Indostrizs. was changing its business model and reducing its
wickforce Ty 143, This restructiming could reduse anmmal odcupiticnsl tax
revenue by over S100,000 annuafly. Cuwreat semitiances haven't reflected a
reduction in salaries, 5o the final financial impacl is yel 10 be determingd

As mentioned abave, the City is experiencing tremeodous growth thronghou? our
cospaeate city Limits  The housing/construction masket is experiencing activity
kst his City hasn't seen in aver ten years. Currently, as of Febeuary 2017, the
foltowing housing related construction projesis are madenvay:

o Three subdivisicns ae vnder development, 2ll of which will allow for
approniniately 236 homes 10 be constrted (ihe Retrezt st Fox (hase
Sobdnision, Fox (haze Phaze 1l Subdivision, Pleasamt Valley
Subdivision, 2nd (he development of cight hones on West Madison Street
by Bolliagtaa-Palton Enterprises }

o One upstake apartment compkex offering 125 units and many ameailies,
Jocated just past Exit 6 off of 163.

o Ooe maderate aparimient complex, offering 24 units, off of Witt Read,
Franklin, KY.

Overall, all keaders within our community are excited for growth and expansion
The end result, piimarily, is the desire for our community to have ke capaify and
availability 1o provide jobs to gar citizens. City keaders are noting that several
industrisl manigement teams are shifling heir workforce from temporary labor to
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Contacting the City’s Financial Management

The financial repaut is designed to provids s genzral oveniow of the City's lmances for all
these with an interest Quastions conceming amy of (he information provided in this reporl
or requests for sddittonst finnial information should be addressed to the Finance
Direator, §17 West Cadar Street, P. O. Box 2305, Franklin, XY 42135 BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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June 30, 2016 GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2016
Tetal
Givarmartal
Chreweyal Fuonds
ASSETS v
Cash i cads agmivelorts § 4014785 5§ 33504 § 443330 Tetal fimd balisces - gonernmmental funds 5 6847310
Certificates of dopust - 433221 43322
et 5 (ret of allaaance for Lol o) Amezets reporlad for poverrments] activities in the Strtertent of Mot
Aoty 417 25457 p=Toe ] Positian are different bevese:
35650 - 935,650
J"M‘g;'}f & 34—%‘??% Capital assets vsad in goverrmental activities are o finandial resounces
. . i 374 35
pretid 35530 2=, therefore, are oot reparted i the furds. $4.274330
w, 21 .
437 ol Onber kaglom assets sre rob avsllshle o pay for anrezt periad
Cach ead cad ot Thects 25100 333029 expenditures and, therefliee, are defemad in the finds 3426056
Todsl aassis B4 $1DRSLTW Some Lishifities are nal due end pavable i e cumert pemod and,
Iherefore, are mot reportad in (he Tuzds
LL&_BILI'[IES. DEFERRED INFLOWS AND FUND RALANCES
Listtics Boneds end pates payable 3 4425114
Accimeds pay aile § IT% s 163§ 333233 Compensated abiences ( 94,320)
Ef; © o fonla 12';3:; 332‘3 ifﬁl‘;ll Acoriead interest on Lor,z-term obligations ( 13405)
ceruad aupans 4 Mot perision 2d OPEB liabilities (_5.245.592) (939 AI
Tetal Lishalries 354,331 200831 5333335
Dufered tilvss Contritutions b the CERS pension plzn have been defared in the
Urav skl teverns 3426055 = 3426058 Stement of Net Podticn 945,494
Food balzwes [raestrent emnings ca persion phn assets have boen defared m the
Tospandabis . Sestement of Met Position 31743
Prepuid ftermy 633 203 v
Papctad exe — 503,331 553,131 £t ot e i s
Restrictad Het pasitiva of govermmentat activities 5 15580230
Highoasys ad stracts - 2892 42832
Crummizted
Ssmraaa - 123210 12321
AsSmad
Dbt service 1212807 - 1212507
Petirermert berwiity 43453 - 453
Deeg ecfireeient TN — 70
Oder papases - 126,705 126,305
Enormtvae resane 28,05) - 2RO
Vrasizrad A5TTELY - 4471633
Taal fond batinces 6037 732 810218 347310
Totad Habditias deferted frdlome m fomd belares 59843680 F 1013083 114 2

See Nates 10 Financial Ststements
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See Notes 1o Financial Statensents
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Year Fnded June 30, 2016

W=t Teead
Govamectal 13
G Fumuds Treeds
Revamacs
Tawes
Froperty 1 SILlol - 5 532101
Ooompationyl 2183531 - 282538
T 1518542 - 1518542
£5.8U - 454
TR — EALEicH
Lt gyverromen sl 182,713 172371 355,553
Chaggss for sokey el services — EIYAS] 317542
Ieanfond choges 13,415 — G HE
Fies 2od forfeitores TIARY - TIEAY
Cemtrimsinas and docuticas - 10,100 10,100
Hvestradt oo 339 2604 13354
Eaelliopeas 334469 625 335334
Total renessts 7257492 301,752 (I RES ]
5 1633033 - 3 1433013
2245591 — 5554
7713 463 245 13405
23525 24751 676,123
Cagetal qoslay 504,671 JIAY 5350034
Dl sarvice
Frimcipel 413,244 — 42924
[rzvest 123131 - 122701
Totsl expendiaes 631563 AT T041.737
Frcess {Jeflciemay ) of reveraas oTer (Daker] exendtmes 955833 28410 27417
Oy [romiFrg sisves (e
Trensforsia 2,503,000 235593 LRI
Trzsfers o { 232935y ( 30 | R5,595)
Sabz of Coplt] mess L5 = 31501
Total et feamcizg someics (nses) 248,503 2526% 253130
Wel climpe i fumd toliowves 32043 H5H 1243518
Froel bebieces, beg ireing of yoos 2832943 A 3358 59
Frod telamces, erd el year L037.2% § 300018 3 65473
See Notas to Financial Statements
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2016
Brsgppyize Fesds
Water znd Frber
Wistrnzter S ezting Optic Tesal
ASSETS
Crarerd aisels
Cash 32l cash eqivslodts 3218 § 3002 it § 2647683
Accrerizieceivable rel 573,514 THARS - £51019
D frocm ety fimds 335 - - 535
Im gy 3599 - - 375,581
Frepoid ity L6255 412 - 163,001
Restrictad sssets
Cashand cash eqidi erts 533255 -— - 573,255
Catifieates of deposid 1031758 bt = 1433718
Toted (emresd a3sets 5351043 410,959 — 5565012
Honouamad assets
Copital assets
Ll 3am 23,114 - 323531
Deprocitie el aoets, rat 185740 - — 1854223
Coratyneting &5 progress 317533 - - 237,933
Totl maoiurerd 2ssels 19235433 42114 3233552
Tokad sty 34473431 [i¥; = 2485554
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
Deferrad zmoedd ca refoyvizg boads 113227 - - 143,227
CERS peaidoss Coefribeiions 295437 = had 233657
Tetdl &efemed ctfloms HA SR = - HRERY

§¢ Notes to Financial Statements

.27

CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

RECONCILIATION OF TIIE STATEMENT OF REVENULS,
EXPENDITURES AND CIIANGES EN FUND BALANCES QF

GOVERNMENTAL FUXDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Vear Ended Juae 30, 2046
Total
Govaneeental
Feolds
et change in fun) balances - obal goveremental fme ds 5 3243918
Amourds reported for povernents] setivities in the Stefoment of
Acdtivities zre differeat beerase
Govermmental  mds repoaet capital ontlns 25 evpenditores
Homessr, m Lhe stetement of sctivities, the cost of those assets is
allocated over Cetr edimited wseful lhes and reported as
Feprecistion expense  This is the amount by which cxpits] cutlays
‘ucoodod depreci ston in the crrent peviad 235435
Govarmental fumds (nly report the disposal of capital assets 1o ke
extent proveeds e received from the sale Lo the stirement of
activities, a gt of lass is reporled for exch dispasal 4 TLIT9)
Fhe ismrae of Rogam debt proiiies coment finwasial resowgces
to govammertil funds, while the tepavment of the principal of
bagtem delt codsenes e cument financial reamirees of
povereeental fosds  Weither tramssction, honvever, has any effect
a net postion Also, govermnental fmds report 1he effect of
premioms, drscotets ol Smila ffems nhen dett is firdd issad.
wherzas these amourds ae deferred and amactized in B gzament
of activities  This ameumd is the et effect of these &fferenves in
the treatmerd of eaz-term debt and related items 427,533
Some expenses reported in the stztament of ativities & oot 1apiie
the uiz of oot fmendal sesswrees and, therefore, are oot
reparted as expentures in goverement fands
Compensyiad theences $ 814
OFED experse { 32071)
Accmal irderest oa lopg-tem debd 2632
Peason expmnse { 183,553
{ 210,443)
Principal collections on notes Teceiveble are inctuded in govern-
mertl (imds Frincipal collestions reduce long-emm nobes recdiv-
able i the governmrent-nide staement of el position 122.350)
Chenge in oot position of povammental ectivities $ 33271363
See Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 39, 2016
Froerpvise Frads
Watey amd
Wastepzhy BT Tzl
EIAEILITIES
Corect lishdties
Accinsis pry e 3 2210 3 149 had 333830
Accrmad Fabilities 3219 300247 - 365,806
Aceried prmest 10424 - hd 1044
Aot vacaica 322 - - 13
Dret b oaday fends 2653 335 — 793
Crrrert mtmicas of s pugetle 14010 - - 144,24)
Fayatds frea restrictad assels
Crrrerd matmithes of reverme bomuds
ohy 300,000 - - Epaten]
Cumesy deposts 431577 = = 431997
Total corrend btk 1212372 413,755 - 1631.163
Mrewwarend biabiities
OFET bty 48621 41,642 — 90,26)
Nl pezgss bibiy 1,490,118 - - 1430188
Revarme baads pryable 3791370 el - 3711390
Tetsl pooscurrerd hukiTities 3310109 41642 - 537751
Tessl Buinlties 6549435 4554323 = 514
DEFERRED INFLOWS
CFRS r2t it edmert dffaerve 9813 = - 2813
NET POSITION
Ret rvestenert is Capctal ascels 15,203,501 114 - 152131615
Rextrictal for detd saavice and
g stivity 1,188,597 - - 1363557
VoreAickad (daiar) L5855 558 ( 459 = 15015
Tetal git postica RE RIS TECE S SO | 5 B | = S1828472)



CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY
CITY OF FRANKLEN, KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OY REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN

FUND NET POSITION - FROPRIETARY FUNDS STATEMENT OF CASH FLOVWS - PRGPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Fnded June 30, 2016 Year Ended Jane 30, 2016
Erterprise Fumds Ertapeiss Fards
Wt ) Fater Wit ed Faer
Waslrmater itagio ot Tetat syt Oz Tetl
. § Cath Eowt from egeTating arthiies
OF\T"—‘& TV - . 5 i Cach proaival Foo coberins 5 510085 5 BN s - $ 3957152
Charges fie snvices 5 4799615 3 8310 — % iR Cauh paymem b 1y eyt wnd petiracs ¢ OLARISY 21y — | 1M79)
Fres s forfeimes 133255 25431 - 164315 Cah puymints 13 sipplcrs ¢ ISEMY [ e O TIskeTH
Pyyortifw e Fite oroteed P 3.3 U CCT R S = [ <)
Tetad operating revaracs S9388EW 875391 = 3814071
Netcrd povided by purateg ectvives LEV4OIE 4533 = 1612953
E zes 1,455,903 2,557 - 1474470 Cush B [rem meacapital Ensneng setvities .
Mreenmee 255,701 630451 — 37,158 Trensfers a2 coer £ = = {2
tibries 335,616 - - 125516 .
Mo iystive St 1950 = s c-::ﬁ?;a from expiral and rubated Fiarneing
Sopplies 533310 - - 332310 Piceels fros e sk of capiad Lisis 1333 - x 21353
O 191,739 - — 191,752 Purchass eFeapil ates (w2 - — (¥
Depeesisiva L033,192 - = 1043192 Priocipal peit en berty notes b2
Lo bfinSies ¢ wss - ER SR X 1)
Total apursting eyprs 4374557 88518 - 245105 Etaest pad eaboeds ooy wed
. ctel cpmieg pems = - 3 iy ( L3L83Y - - ¢ 1Ry
Opa sizg heeme (148) 563 343 6583 — 268056 sa1ine feos puid ¢ a1y = - [ F3o]]
. . . s Nt gast peavided by (oed i) cagital
Remeper g fevenmes (Oenses) i 274 refased Feancig scinivas (A3 %37) - 2 3018 LN 255
Investmend oo 5503 333 - 534
Mg eflanecas revarze 134 - - 11304 Cash Bows from b estizg sotividies
Itirent axpsise ¢ 137 - —~ {13087 Povchases of serfficres of dopeeit 2 o - 1377
Pt Lt 3 3031) - — { 3031) ke recehied P 1 3 - REET|
¢ fees { 302) - = { 02) . N . .
Crm (s3] em draposad of giscts ( 2634) - 34707 301023 Nel el pronided by Eaestos ntvitics 1831 333 - 1|
Tel porpara e ( V5D 31 304907 257383 Net mreuse i cad pad ea agavakets EE 538 ~ ES AL
heat 1o tleett, boginsie v 534627 333,734 - %
Incecme (hoss) before bizsfirs $14.531 2015 3707 55254 Codiaslealophtlat bgacing efye 2834 #9135
Cash =f ey epairalecty 2= of yad 32547541 oS S 12594
Trestersed = = 4 2S00 2590000
i et podition _sus3 1018 (2195291 (L L&y Reflecta bn the Stifesnud of Fend Nt Fesition -
Progeietizy Feadsast
Netpostion(defiil) begrarma ofyer 19,756,722 (11,361 2195293 19,340,654 A e ettt sauiess s a2 3 T tadien
Frior paisd a5t [ 42 1K7) iad = 1 EFRETH Tets) 528435 foamang 5 - 5123884
Mol positiea (deficit). begincng of yeor,
restitad 1738338 ( L3S __ 2195093 5898447
Ml postioa {deficin) énd ofyou BEXSIGAA (B 4MH & = s1R2u
. N
See Notes 1o Financial Statensents S Nodes 1o Finencial Statements (Continuad)
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROYRIETARY FUNDS {CONTINUED) NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2016 June 30, 2016
rrwy Eetagvis Fmdil“-.:r NOTE L. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
i =
e i < The City of FranMin, Kentmeky {Ciy) is a municipal coupovation and political
FecsrefBatho of eperathag Inctans ta 1t 2tk swhdinision of the Commonwealth of Kenteky., The City operates under a
P‘g:“:;;‘gf;j‘_?‘@“’-“‘m s s § 6en _ s sasw Commission-Manager form of govetment  The City provides a full range of
ABatmom e dy emmde g3 Tnd irancs A3 municipal services including gentral goveronient senvices, police and fire protection,
et cash panided By penatag amvises Lo N public wotks, parks and recreation, and cemetery operations. In addition, the City owns
) ”;,'3: - - lf&g; and operates a water and sewer system,
T tes.
ssorezts poeaivabls s ( 114 - 219% The financial sistemznts of the City have boen prepared in sccordance with geasratly
o= fracs ceter . o ¥ . ‘ & by
aeseha l s 244 - ¢ 1943 accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental anits. The Govem-
{Lcreans) deereass i fmertany ead menlsd Accounting Standads Board (GASBE) is the standard-seiting body fer
prgsdam (L m — ¢ Rl govenmentat accounting and financia! repoeling. The GASB periedicaliy updakes is
“*;:‘;‘_';::‘f"“"“;’“’ o PR - — ¢ codification of the existing Governmental Accounting aad Financial Reporing
Doctons: ia poasts payatle P % 1T 29233 —- ¢ seny Standards, which, along with sobsequent GASB pronouncemicals {Statements and
Decrease ia siarnel Fabitin E I;‘r‘;_)i; Iy 24803 - ¢ l;,f;':} Inserpretations), constitutes GAAP for governmentst units The mare sigaificant of the
Davresss i earoed sacafin ‘. — - <1y g i o N .
Hrercase b o toes dopaits o _ — st City’s acoounting policies are desciibed below.
Ircrease (deretc) i die Brober s ( son) 335 - ¢ 871)
Irexse {#eaesie) o OFER Bty 30 21y - 1) A.  Reporting Entity
Lvrease b pecfion Eatlay 1783 - - 3188
Docreast ia defimmad 22 o 1657 i = . = . . . .
et A eeame The accompanying government-wids finarkisd statements peesent the financial
Netcad ool by paricg statements of the City. There are po componest vits, legally separate ertities for
it SLEUME 84S .5 LLIAAGD which the City is considered to be financially accountable. Accountabitity is defined as

the Cily’s substantive appointment of the mujonity of the component unit's goveming
board. Furthermare, 1o be financistly accountable, the Cige must be able to nipase its
will upan the companeat unit o there must be a possibility that the compangnl it
may provide specific finandial benefits to or impose speeifie finacial burdens on the
Cigy.

Refated Qrganizations and Jointly Governed Orgasizations

A related erganisstion is an eality for which a primary govermment is not financially
accountable. It dovs pot impose will or have a finaacial beasfit or bunden relationship,
even if the primssy governnxal appalnts a voling majority of the refated organization’s
goverting board. Based on these criteria, the Electic Plant Board and the Housing
Authacity of Frankiin are considerad related organizations of the City.

See Nedes to Finangial Statements

<30



NOTE L.

NOTEL

CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNHICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A regional government of other mull-goy cmmental errangemeal is gon emed by repre-
sentatives fiom ¢ach of the govemments that ereated the erganization, but is not 4 joinl
venture because the participants do oot relain an ongeing finsncial interest or
responsibifity,  Based oa thise citeria, the Franklin-Simpson Industrial Autherity,
Franklin-Simpson Planming end Zoning Commizsion, end Franklin-Simpson Planning
and Zoning Adjusiment Board are considered jointly governed erganizations of the
City.

Joint Veniures

A joint venture is a lega] enlity of other organization that results from a contractual
agrezmzal and that is owned, opersied, or govemed by two or maee parlicipants as a
separate activity subject ta joint control, in which the pariicipstes retain () an ongoing
fimancial interest or (b) an cngaing financial responsibility. Basad on these criteria, the
Frarklin-Stmpsaat Parks Board and the Simpson County 911 Advisaey Board ase
conisidered joint ventmes of the City.

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The basic financial Satements includs both government-nide (based on the City as a
whols) and fund finencial statements as follons

Government-wide Financial Statements

The govemmenl-wide financtal statements (¢, the Stalement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities) report Imformation on all of the nonfiducisay activities of the
City, Fiduciany activities are exclodd from the govemmentowids stitements because
they cannot be vsed to suppart the Cify’s ovwn programs  As a general rule, the effzct of
ipterfund activity has been eliminated from the povemment-wide financial satements
These datemznls distingmish hepween the governmendal and businzss-lype 2livitks of
the City. Gavernmenlad activities generally are finsnced through taxes, intergavem-
mentdd revenpes and ot nonexchange tansaclions.  Business-hype activities are
finarced in whole of in part by Rees charged to external parties. The Statement of
Activities demonstiates the degree 10 which the direct expenses af a given function or
jdentifiable activiby is offset by program revenues. Birect expenses are those that are
clearly associated with a gpecific functon or identifable sctivity. Expenses that can
not be specifically identified to a parlicular fimction are chirged {o fimds hased on time
spent for that function and are includad in the functional categories, Program revenues
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Juze 30, 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Specia] Revenue Fuads

Special revenne iimds are used to account for specific revenues thal are [eally
restricted to expenditures for pariculur purpeszs. The City’s five nonmajor
special reveoue funds account for specific revennes that are restricted to
expenditues for operiting the Greenlawn-Shady Rew Cemetery {Geeenlawn-
Shady Rest Cemetery Fund), g ! housing, ¢ fty and econonic
developmint projests (Comuemunity Development Fund), public works (Mumnicipal
Aid Fond), economic deselopment activities (Econamic Development Revohing
Lean Fund), and formwater system (Stormwater Fund )y

Permanent Fonds

Permanant fimds are tsed o repadt resources that are kegally restricted to aliow
caly the eamings and not the principal 1o be usad for purposes that support the
reporting government’s programs.  The City tepodts Iwo noamajor petmnest
funds (Frenwis Hards Cometery Perpriual Fund and Greeolswa-Shady Rest
Cematedy Perpetual Fund) which acconnt for assets held in trust for the permanent
maintenancs and beautification of Greenlawn-Shady Rest cemetery,

Froprietary Funds

Propristacy fuad repotting focuses on changes in nel assets, financial position and cash
flows. Proprictary funds are classifizd as cither enterpaize or internal senvice.

Enterprise Funds

Enterprize fimds are waed 1o 2count for operations (2) that are financed and
operated in @ manner similar to private business enterprises — where the intent of
the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including deprecistion) of
prondding goods or senvikes to the generat public on a continuing bads be
financed ar recavered printarily through user charges; of (b) whiere the governing
body has desided that periadie determinations or revenues eumned, expenses
incurred and’or net inconse is appropridte for capital maintenance, public policy,
management coatrol, accountability of other purposes.  The City reports ths
following major enterprise fimwds:

Water and Wastewater Fund
The Water and Wastewater Fund accounts for the operations of the Ciy's water

ard wastew aler system.
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NOTE L

NOTE1.

CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2006

SUMMARY OF SIGRIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICEES {Continuad)

inctude: (4) charges o custemers or applicants wha purchase, use or directly benefil
from poads, services or privileges providad by a given functica or identifishle activity,
2nd (b} grants and contrbutions that are restrictad to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of & partfcular program or identifishle activity. Reseoues which e not
classified as program revermues are presented as peperal revenws of the City, with
certain limited ¢ xeeptions

Fund Financial Statemenis

The fund financial statzments pwovide informatian about the City’s funds. Separate
statements for each fmd — govemmental and proprictany arc presedted. The emphasis
of fund financial statements is ot major gonernmental and major enterprisz funds, exth
displayed in a ssparate column All other governmental and enterpeise fords, if any,
are aaaregated 2nd repoatad as nonmajor funds

Yund Acconating

The City uses funds to maintain its finaneial records during the year. A fund is defined
as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-batancing set of zccounts. There are three
categories of funds: povemmental, proprictary and fidusian.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are theze funds through which maost gavernmental functions
typicath are financed  The measurement focus of governmental funds is on the
sources, uses and halanve of cwrenl finsncial esourees. The City has preseated the
following majoar governmental fund:

General Fund

The Geooral Fusd Js the geosral operating fund of the City. Al geoseal 1ax
revenres and other receipts that are not allocated by law, crdinance or contraviual
agreement to some other fund are accounted foc in this fitnd.  General opecating
evpernditures, fived chupes and capital improvenknt costs that 2z nod paid
through other funds are paid frem the General Fund
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGRIFICANT ACCOUNTENG POLICIES (Continuad)
Sanitation Fuad
The Smitation Fund accournts for the operations o the City”’s sanilation system.
Fiber Optic Fund

The Fiber Optic Tund 2ccoumts for the eperalions of the Cib's fiber optic
system. In June, 2043, the City Commission voted by resotulion o szll and
wansfer ali of the tingible and intangible assats of the fiber optic network 13 the
Franklin Electric Plant Board,  The Beard assumed day-ta-day operations of the
fiber aptic network an Jely |, 2615

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting
Government-wide and Proprietary Funds

The governmentwide and propriztary fund Anancis) staternends zre reported using the
evanomic Tesources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting.  With this
measurement focus, all assets amd all liakilities including long-lerm assels, as well as
leng-teom debt and obligafons, are Included in Statemenl of Net Posilion.  Resenues
are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded at the tine liabilities are incured,
regardiess of the timing of related cash flows,

In proprietary funds, operating rovenwes and expenses are distinguished from
nonoperaling items. Opersting revenus and expenses generally result from providing
senices (o connection with the principal ongaing operations of the fund. Al revenues
and expenses not mecling this definition are repovied as nonoperating items.  When
bath reatrieted 2nd oorestricted resources are available for use, it is tbe City’s policy o
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resowrces as they are needed.

Nenexchangs tranzactions, i which the City receives {or gives) valus without direetly
giving (or receiving) equal value in exchange, include property taves, grants,
entitlements aml similar items and donalions. Recognilion standards arg based ca the
characteristics and classes of nonexchangs transactions. Revenues fram property taxes
are recognized in the peried in which the taxes are Inded. Franchise fees, licenses and
permits, fines and fodfeitures are recognized as revenuss, net of estimatad refunds and
uncollectible amounts, in the accounting period whea an enforceable fegal claim o the
assets arises and the use of resowrces is required or is first permitted  Grants,
entitlemyents and donations are recognizad 03 revenuss, net of estimated uncollactivle
armounts, 25 sooa as all eligibility requirements impased by the provider have beea met,



NOTE L

NOTE 1,

CITY OF FRANKLEN, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conlinued)

Amounts received before all eligibility sequirements have been migt are reported as
defermed revenues. Granls and similz 2id to other evganizations are recognized as
expenses a3 soon 85 recipients have met all eligibility requirements. Amounts paid
before all eligibility requirements have boen met arg reported 43 prepald ikns.

Governmentz! Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fumds are reporded using the curment financial resowces meanaemeat
focns and the modifed accoual basis of aocounting. With Giis measwement focus, only
curment assets and lishilitics are generally included on the balance shaet The staterceat
of revenues, expenditlures and changes in fund balances prescols increases (revenuss
and other financing scurces) and decreases (gvpenditures and ather financing vses) in
sperdable resources. This approach differs from (e manner in which the governmental
ativities of the government-wide finincial stateoinls are peepared,  Theeefore,
govemmental fund finzncial statemends inchide a réancilistion with brief explaations
o belter jdantify the relatianthip hetween the government-wide stattments and the
stetements for govemmental fimds,

General capital asset acquisitions are reparted as expenditures end proceeds of general
long-term debt are reported as ofher financing sources. Under the madified scenual
basis of accounting. revenues are recognized when bath measurable and available. The
City considers revenuss repotted in the povermmental funds to be available if they are
coflectible within & days after year end.  Principal revenue sowrces considercd
susceptible to pocnpal incinde 1axes, Bieenses and fnvestment zamings. Other reveaues
are considersd to b2 measwable and available only when cash is received by the City,
Expenditures are tecorded when the related fund Lighitity is incumed, except for
principyl and interest on general bosgterm debd, claims and judgments, compensated
shienees and obligations for worker's compensation, which we recognized s
expenditures when psyment is due Pension expenditures are rxiognized when
amounts are due taaplan

The City reports vnsamed 1evenns on ils combined balance sheet Uneamed revenue
arises when potentia] revenne daes not meet both the “measurabde™ end “availabl™
criteiia for recognition in the current peried.  Uneamed revenns also erices when re-
sources are reecived by the City before it has a Jegal claim to them. Jo subsequent
periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met or when the City has a ligai
claint 1o the resources, the Hability for unsamad revenus is removed from the combined
Balinve shoct amd revenus is recognized.

CITY OF FRANKEEN, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Jine 30,2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCQUNTING POLICEES (Continuzd)
Hestricted Assels

Cerlain prozeeds of bonds, as well a3 certain resourees set aside for thedr payment, are
classified as restriciad assels on the halance shewt since their use is limited by
applieable bond indentares. Construction fimd accounts arc used (o report proveads of
geaerdd obligation and rovense bonds and potes that are restricted for use in
corstruction and capilal scqusiions. Depeeciation and Maintenance accounts are the
resources sot aside to peovide reasanable rescmes for renewals, replacements,
improvements, extensions, evraordinary mgar repaics and contingencies related ta
tond obligation projects. Sinking Fund 2ccounts are the ressurces accumulated for
debe senice pasments,

Investments and Investment fncome

Investments inchede cenlificates of deposit or govemmient abligations carried at fair
valpe, Investment incomse includes interest income and the net changs for the year in
the fair vatue of investments carried at fair value,

Unbilled Revenue

The City bills cestomers for water and sewer senvices after usage based vpon metes
readings made duning the menth. The City 1ecoeds a receivable for unbilled revenue at
June 30 for usage for which bills have not hees sent,

Capital Assets

Capitst assels, which includa peoperty, plant, equipment and infrastructure assels, are
1eported in the government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements
for proprictary funds. Purchased or constructed <apilal assets are reported 2t cost or
estimated historical cost Donatad capital assets are recordad at their estimated Dir
value et the date of donation.  The costs of nasmal maintenancs and repains that do not
2dd 10 the vatue of the asset or materially extend assel lives are not capitalized

The City maintains a capitalization threshold of $2,000. Trdercst incureed daring the

construclion phase of capital astets of basiness-type activities is included as part of the
copitalized vatue of the assets constnscted.
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NOTE 1.

NOTE L.

CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30,2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES {Continged)
Assets, Liabitities and Fund Equity
Cash and Cash Fquivaleals

The City considers all liquid investmzals with eriginal maturities of three nronths o
less ta be cash equivalents. At June 30, 2816, cash equivaleats consisted primarily of
cedificates of deposit and short-term instnzments with Jocal fiazncial institutions

Receivables and Payables

Acdtivity betaeen funds that are representative of lending bormowing amangamcnts
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred o as cither “due ta/fiom other
funds” (ie, the curen? poartion of interfund loans) or “advances talfrom other finds™
(ie, the pan-current porion of interfund losns).  All other ouvtstanding balances
between funds are repovied as “due tofrom other fmds”  Any residual halances
oumstsnding batnedn the governmensal activities and basinessdype aclivilizs are
reported in the povernment-wids financial statements as “internal balances.”

All rade and property tax receivables are shovn net of an allawance for uncoflectibles.
Proparty taves atlach as an cnforceable licn on property a5 of January 1 each year.
Property values are assessed on January |of each year, laxes axe levied annually by
ordinwwe and are pyyable on Becember 31 The City bills and coliects its own
property 1axes, City property tax revenuss arg revoznized when kevied ko the extent that
they a2¢ buath measurable end ayzifable,

Inventories

Tnvertoeies are vatued at cost, which approxdmate market, using the first-inffirst-out
(FIFO) methad. The costs of imventory items sre recognized a5 expenditures of
expenses when nsed

Prepaid Tems

Certain paymeats to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting perods and
are 1ecorded as prepaid ilems in both government-wide and fund finicial statements

-17-

CITY QF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POEECTES (Continuad)

Capital ascets, excluding infrastructure, are depeeciated using the straightline method
over their astimated nseful lives as follosws:

Years
Utitity plant 2550
Busldm g e irege oveTsnts 25- 43
Femutore 20 equipment 10
Vehicles 4

The City wilizes the madificd zpprasch for reparting cligitde infrastruchme assets
Fligible infrastructore assels are a0l depreciased, additions and improvemeats ihersto
are capitatizad and all other omlays made for such assets are expensad in the perind
incwrred caly if requirements regarding asset manigement system 2nd presen ation at
comdition level are met

Depeecistion expense is charged direstly to the departmentfanction based on the
department that utilizes the related asset

Compensaled Absences

The City grants vacation and sick pay to all full-time employees based ¢a length of
service Hme. The cost of vacation and sk pay is accrued when eamed in the
government wide and proprictary fimd financial statements and reported as accrued
lishilitics. Tn fund financish stalements, only amounts that are expected to be liguidated
with availshle financial resourees are repoeted as expenditires and included in sccrued
Lisbilities

Long-term Obligations

In the governmentwide and peoprictany fund fiaxkial statements, koog-tem debt and
ather kang-teem obligations are reported as liakilities in the columns for govermental
activitics, business-type activities o propeistary find Statement of Net Position. Bond
premiunts and discounts are amoctized over the life of the bonds nsing the straight-lin:
methad. Bonds payable are reporied oot of the applicable bond premivim or discount.
Debt issvance costs are reporied a8 expensss in the penod ncumed
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Centinuzdy

In the fund Financial statements, governmental fund fypes recoznize bond prensiums
and discounts, a5 well as bond issuance costs, during the current pedod. The face
amount of debt isszed is repated as other finaing sources. Premiums reseived on
delw dssuances arg reported as other financing sources vwhile discounts on debt issuances
are reported as other finwncing uses. Tssuance tosts, whether or not withbe1d fromt the
actal debt procoads received, are reported as dele stivice expenditures.

Unearned Revenue

The City defers revenue recognition for assels 1ecoznized before reveme recognition
criteria has boen satisfied.

Grants and eatitlements received before eligibitity reqrrements are met are unzamad
In addition, in governmental fund finzial statements, notes znd lease Tecehnables a2t
fiscal year-cnd are recorded as uneamed revenue bocause potential revenns does not
maet the “available™ criteria for recogniticn in the current peded

Deferred Inflows of Resources and Deferred Qutflows of Resources

With the implementation of GASB Statements 65 and 63, the City’s Statement of Net
Position includes deferred infllaws (or defered cotflonis) of sesources when
approptiste,  Deferred cntilows of resources represent a consumption of net position
that applies o a future pericd(s). Deferred inflows of 1esources Tepresent =n acquisition
of nat position that applics 1o a fubure pericd(s). These amounts will not be racognized
a3 epense of revenus until the epplicable period

Deferred Outlows - include the differences between 1eatquisition price and the nct
canying amount of Tefunded debt obligations that is recognized as a component of
interest expease over the remaining life of the ofd delx or Ui LR of the new dedt,
nhichever is shorter. In addition, it includes conuibutions to pension plans mads
subsequent 1o the City’s mezsurement date of June 30, 2015,

Deferred Inflows - inchede differences betmeen projectad and acinal camings on
investments in pension plans
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CIEY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

NOTFS TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 3, 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Coatiaued)
Ned Position

In the govemment-wids statements, the difference between the City's tolal assets and
totat liabiliits 1epraseals nel position

Wet investment fn capilal assets consists of cepilal assets. net of accumulated
dprecistion, 1edeced by the outstanding balances of any baowing used for the
acquisition, construction or improvernent of those aseets.

Nel pasition is reported 25 restricted when constraints placed on tham are either
externally imposed by creditars, grantors, contiibutors or Laws and regul stions of other
governments or are imposed by law through constitution:t provisions or embling
legislation.

Hevenuoes, Expeadilures and Expensss
Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses for progrictay funds are those that result from
providing services and producing and delivering goods and®or senices I also invudes
all revenve and expenses pot relaed fo capital and relzwed finmncing, non-capital
financing, or investing sttivities

Taterfund Activity

Transfers between govemmental and proprictary activities on the government-wide
statemienls are reportad in the same mannee as general revenues.

Exchange transactions between funds arg seporiad as revesues in the seller funds and as
expenditures’apenses in the purchaser funds. Flows af cash or goods from vz fusd to
another without 3 requirement fox repayment are reported as inlerfund transfees
Intecfund transfers are reported 25 other financing soumcesiuses in govemmental fimds
and after nomoperating revenues’evpenses in proprictary funds. Repnyments from
funds respoasibde for particular expenditores kpenses to the funds thet initi lly paid foc
them are not presented on the finmneial statements

NOTEL.

NOTE L

F.

CITY OF FRANKLIN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continnad)
Fund Balance CTassification

The Fellawing classifications deseribe the relative strength of the spending constraints
placed on the purpases for which 1esourees can be nsed

+ Nongpendable fimd balance—amounts that are not in spendable form (such as
inventony) or are reqaired ta be maintained intact

o Restricted fiund balznco—amounts constratned o specific parposes by theic
providers (such as grantors, bandholders, and higher Levels of government),
through constitutional provisions, or by ensbling degislation.

+  Committed fund balance—amounis constrained 1o spexific purprses by the City
itself, using its highest level of deciston-making authority (1 ¢, City ocdinance).
To b reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for any ather purpase
unless the City takes the same highest keved stion to remove of change the
constraing

o Assigred fund balance—amounts the City inlends 1o use for a specific purpase.
Intezt can be expressed by the City Commission o by an ofitcial o bady ta
which the City Commission delegates the authority.

» Unudenad fund balance—in the General fund, resources not othenvise
reported as nonspendsble, restricted, committad, or assigned  This classification
is also usad to repat negative fund balance amcunts in other governmental
funds

The City Coaimissica 2stsblishes (and modifies or rescinds) fond balince commitments
by passage of an cedinance, This is tvpically dane throush adoption and amendment of
the bidget A furd balance commitment is Fariber indicaied in the budget documeat as
a designation or commitmenl of the fund (such as for special incentives)  Assigned
fund balanze is esteblished by City Commission through adoption o5 amtndment of the
bodgel a5 intendad for specific purpase (such as the purchase of fived assils,
constriction, $ebi senice, or for other prposss).

The City would typizally use restricied fund balances first, followed by committed
sesources, and Then assigned resawzces, as appropriate oppodtunities ariss, bot resenes
the right to selectively spend unassigned resourees first to defer the use of thase other
<lassifiad fonds.

-

CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuad)
Use of Estimates

The preparation of finangial statements in conformily with accounting principles
gemeraly accepled in the United States of Amerea requires management to make
estimates and assmptions that alfect the reporied amounts of sssis and Lizbilities and
dizclosure of cantingent assets and Lisbilities at the dazz of the financial statements and
the reparied amowmts of revenuss and expensesfexpenditures during the repoting
period  Actual results could differ from thoss estimates

Buodgetary Information
Budgzt Policy

Budgcts arc adoptad on 3 basis condstent with generally accepted accounting
principles  Annua) appropristed budgets are adopted for the geocral, special revenne,
and enterpuise funds. A budget is oot prepared for the City's permaneot funds  All
annual appropriations lapse at fiszal year end

Legsl Compliance

All agencies of the City submit requests for sppropriation 1o the City nianager so that 2
budget may be prepared. The budget is prepared by fund, fonction and activity, and
incldes informaden on the part year, carent year cstimates, and requested
appeopeistions for the pext fiseal year,

Before June 1%, the propesed budget is presented 1o the City Commission for review.
The City Commission helds public hearings {o obiain Lagayer comments. Prior ta July
1, the budpet is legatly enscled through passage of an ondinance. The City Manager is
authocized to ransfer budgeted amounts between deporiments within any fund;
however, any revisions that aler the 1ol expenditures of any fund nuust be approved
by the City Commission. During the vear, several supplementary appropeistions were
neCEsay.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENIS
June 30, 20E6

DEPOSITS, INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT RETURN
Depotits

Custadial credit risk is the risk that in the gvent of a bank falture 2 government's
deposits may niol be petened it The City's deposit policy for custodial cradit risk
requires compliance with the provistens of state Taw.

State law requites collateralization of all depodts with federal depasitory innmance;
fetters of credil issued by fedeval home loan banks; bonds, notes, Jetters of crediy or
other cbligdions of the UL §. Treasury, U. S agenciss or instrumentalities of the state
of Kentucky; bonds of amy city of the first, second, and third cfasses, coumty, school
district or educationsd institwion of the siate of Kentueky] or surcty bonds having on
aggregate cument face vatue o cwrent quodad market value at least cqal to the amomnt
of the depasits in excess of amounls insured by the FDIC,

Al June 30, 2016, $ 7,834 840 of the Cily”s hank balances of §9,979.318 nas expaxed to
custodial credit risk as follows, while $1,004 477 was covered by the FDIC:

Uninsuced a2d collteral bl by padgiag finenial

ingitution $ 6,719,340

Veinsred and unvoll2qalized 1165 500

Total deposils exposdd to custedial eredit nsk 5 753384
Investments

In accordance with Kentuchy Revised Statutes (KRS) 66,430, the Cily may kegally
invest in obligations of the U. S Treasury, U. 8. agencies and instrumentalities,
including oblipztions subject to reporchase agreements, bankers' acceplances,
commeccial paper, eblisaticas of the Commonweatth of Kéntucky and its agencies and
instrumentatilics, grares of muteal funds or interest bearing depasits of insarad national
of state banks.

At June 30, 2016, the City had the folloning investments and maturities:

Matoritics
In Yess
Type =7 Va'ns fessthon
U. S chligaions L ORRR §__ 633508

“H.

CITY OF FRANKLEN, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016

DEFQSITS, INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT RETURN (Continuad)
Inchrded in the fodlowing balsnce sheet caplions:

Gorernmest-w ide Stulement of Not Peaithn

Cash and cash eqaivilents $ 7725987
Catficres of depout 439221

Restnstad asssts
Cash 233 cash egrvileris 1,931 184
Certificates of deposit 1,083,718
Tatal £10.330210

Investment Income

Lnvestrmeat inonme for Lhe year cnded Jue 30, 2016

consised of:
Inrerest and dividend income 5 4040
NOTES RECEIVABLE

Wotes receivable al une 30, 2816 consists of the Tollwwing:
General Fund:

Franblin-Sirpsin [ndudayd Avibenty promissory pote
reveitable, dated Davernbr 3, 2010, reeivable in 24
mocittly indatiments of $33,333, isclndig intersst ot
7.55%5; sevired by real esl2e modgage 83426 058

NOTE 2.

NOTEA.

CITY OF FRANELIN, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 1016

DEPOSITS, INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT RETURN (Continued)

Interest Rate Risk - The City recognizes thal soms level of risk is inherent in any
investmeny transsction  Losies miy be incumed due to {ssuer default, market price
changes, or closing investnienls prior 1o maturity due to unanticipated cash flow meeds.
Whils the City has adopted an investment policy that recommends controlling interest
ate risk through maturity diversification, the palicy states thy undess matched 0 2
specific cash flow need, the City's funds should nod, in general, be imvested in securities
malyring morg than ten ygars from the date of purchase

Credit Risk - Credit risk is the nisk that he issuer of olher countarpaty 10 an
investment will not folfill its obligations. Tt is the City’s policy to limit its investnaents
in secorities issued by a stale or Fecal govermment or any U S5 agency or
instrumentality to the top three ratings lssned by nationally recognized stadatical sating
wrganizations (NRSROs) At June 30, 2016, investments in U. §. agency obligations
not dircctly guarsateed by the UL S goverumen! were rated AAA by Standard &
Poor’s

Cencentration of Credit Risk - The City’s funds must be divessifiad by secarity ype
and institution with the exception of fully jnswed o fully collsteratized investments
and except for authorized investment poals, no mers than 305 of the City's total
investment portfolio shall b invested in a sngle security ype or with a single finamcial
institugion, At June 30, 2016, 1049% of the City’s investments were in U. 5. Obligation
Mutwal Funds. .

Summary of Carrying Yaloes

The canying vahies of deposits and investments shown above are included in the
balance sheets as follows:

Camyang v afoe
Depasits $9.521,303
Lavestmeats 653977

350,21

CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016

RESTRICTED ASSETS

The City’s rectricled assets are 85 follows as of June 30, 2016

Catfes Iaat
(¥T.) i Fozeaiy I =
Corrrrtersat scshitas
Oooaal Taimd
Brtcze Lift fnd 3 e s -5 - 5 s
Proe fmd 70 = — 7MY
Cicy of Frar Lt W0§ Pand Fd [STVAT] E} = e
Teed Goeral Faed 126102 - - LL0%
Spedad Brvmie Ferd
Croremizy Do gt N6 - - HEo)
Tl ezl aaniin kL] = = 1 32600
Bushesn e sotivien
Fazorgrite Faad
Ve ! ¥rearafod
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, HL6 June 30, 2016
NOTES. CAPITAL ASSETS NOTES.  CAPITAL ASSETS (Continuad)
Lapital assat activily foe the year ended June 30, 2016 vas as follows: Duprecistion expenss was charged 10 functionsprozrams of the primary govemment as
foallows:
Btazie Batme
1=5 33 2 = as £
P E———— RER awa e A Governmental scth iies:
o Lax L‘d"“‘h—; St $ LI 1 153,823 5 $ LTSN A so\'m.rr.rmt 5 63'054
i i AL - — FEC-TELS] Puble safety 162,853
Cary 3 18858 EX033 2438 = Puldic wirks ERRA S
Tt capitd i, 67 buekrg depuacized FESTLED] 147 45 WHD 230 41 Commrnity 204 clturl e L
Copead ey t\.\,g deqredned Total depreciation expense - povernnentil activilies 5 RDASY
Bl &=y a2 f g ooy L3H082 41431 34447} 151677
'u:xﬂa 2427453 wan S324TH) 134348 s
Fewtoe, Kuvess and egpmind 1410 €1oy  ( ames) 1151092 Besiness-type aetivities;
] i " Water 20d wastewater § 1,043,192
Tatal czgitd meady, bewa S soraed 8448755 L ALIFL [ L332283 ASRET [‘lh"'of‘lc hnd
Lo secusmd s dgnecistion
B ey EELEAS; © £5,200 Wy THEAT) fatha s ~Tsres inriag
Saay P e/ R v wE L st Total deyrechation expense - usiness4ype adtivities LRI
Farrinae £iisa kuf bqagrasd 12187 ¢ sy IS 941 453)
Toed poerdend doredeim [l A3 ekdy [l pIELIT)| 1HLIE (L 261790 NOTE 6. LON(;‘TERB! LIABILITIES
Titd capial zaan, bomg dqvecizted ot 1EXLL5) b1 RNTAS [ it 351 184553
e oo msiten crpieal zie. ol FETEC T S oW g sy L2 Revenue bonds and ether dizeetly related long-term liabilities, which are intended to be
[— paid from proprietary funds, are inctuded in the accounts of such funds. All other long-
sre ety . X .
oo e 1 e deprscioned tem indebtedness is aecounted for in the Governmeatal column of the Govemment-
= § 53 48 1N oI ide r St
Corstouion i1 pragrest 1185181 JUES 1w nrIN wide Statement of Net Position
Toeal capivad gancm, aud b A aiasd TELE LHTES S B LYY T) 12U Changes in fong-term Labilities for the year ended June 30, 2016 were as follows:
Caital piscts bimg Agmaasiaied m e N )
[ 2L JELEE Amnmn i
meL{}.m n\:::::j ! ’:f; K ‘?ﬁﬁiﬁ ”’7::‘1;: Fome 302008 Ereas Deretses s ja0m Yem
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TQ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016 June 30, 2016

NOTES. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continuad
’ ’ ‘ e NOTE 6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

Batmoe Rutewe
Ize3A M5 _Inresss  Deastvs st MIE

MNodes payable:

Babss tipe aeshites:
Frtemse hets EREIETo B — S BN S 4N
'-"—5““"21““ Man O s i _ 2013, Da:,musns;m- B
Bw“:‘—*mﬂ* 1 FETIYSH = Dron Toan Sem 14, the frmel poyrert of the eotie Lpz_vd c‘ymi_a

grinipde bakinod plus acome! izorest Wil be dae Dc\¢.h~r

Cotus paytic 21428 = (_lzun 14428) 1424 29, 2016; ismed b refimd the ciming ;m's;\al i
intarest of B2 CHy of Frodin Genasl Obbzstion Not,

Tetdbidmmotyge ntiites S48T06%)  § o~ (5 AWOM) S40IMD & 44434 Seriy 2010 11 the izl prissigel amat of 54,00
datd Frme 30, 2010 Refimvdad Kok ™) stvrol by e ﬁl
Told germeal 21 i, cradt and taxing pomar of the O, asigroerd b
lociasehypeserites  SOBIND  S....o= (G S50 S80S 3MMEE Froils Bak & Trot Coopmy of 2 of Coy's nich, tete

et b end 1 (i) the Itarbal Agreamace Regeabing
Ind; 1 Dy edoprernt, datad March &, 2010, by el acong

Governmental activities: e Commdy of Stmpua, Keemchy, e City and s Fromkde.
Strysra ledeiial Avionty ead (0} te Assgmert of

Leissi im] Rends, deted Mwch 31, 2010 frem the P

St Ieadmtriad Auaciy 1 Baz Cady. £ 3136436

The City enters into geneal obligation bonds, lease purchase agreements and notes
payable to finance the acquisition and constnxction of vazious public projects.  These
long-term liabilities pladge the full faith and ceedit of the City.

Business-type aclivities:
Governmental activitics foag-term debt of the City consisted of the following at June ype attivitizs:

30, 2016: Netes payable:
Gengral Obligation Bonds: Water and Wastewater Fuad:

$1L695000 City of Frevin, Ketuly Geomil Obfasioa $237224) Kebecky Infrastrs R 3o it
by e Amhoody  pssistuae

Puldst Projat Refmioy o] Improverment Puoeels, Saies srreeraat Eote, datad Ky |, 1996, prineiped ecd ered &

2009, deeed Octeber 13, 2003, fithy regiatered bmds | the 1214 payaMe seecazconlly oo Rae 1 asd Dacemher 1

demi=iatica of $3000 or sy Eemal ot duroof, Bevih Fre, 2017, praceads msed by fineece mpzrades b

mataing on Octoha | i el instafimerts of $160,00 1 wasteaher raximert ploct S 16

355,000 theroah 004, Peberest ar 278 10 436 puy ible s

ey o8 Apl 1 &) Ouivha 1, dsssad b refird five

gencrad chlzstion lease pachase exreements el oot pemrad

chpatioa rele papste (oadstmdng prisepet Babnces Revenue bonds

bitatig $1.505341) 2 0 fmmce e cos of the s

of five polie creisas ad a portion of Qt conriticn ant Revenue bonds are comprised of various issues for the purpoase of zequiring,

E":ﬁ i “"“ﬂgf__g“" (b ‘T“:f‘:f‘%”““‘ svmalby constructing, equipping, renovating, espanding and refurbishing additions and
A £, < touieg pome of the Ciy- improveawnts 1o the City’s system. The City pledges inconse dedived froem e

acquired or constructed assels to pay dely service.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continned)
Water and Wastewater Fund:
Revenoe bords cutstanding &1 June 30, 2016 were a5 follows

Fiaal Faioeipal at
letoed Ratys Mabaity Dote Joce 30, W16

Revamac bonds, Saics B09¢A)  200-437530  Drvoeder 1, 2034
Revemmeteads, Series BAI2¢H) 260-373%%  Decasher 1,2073

Unmostired discomts, ranies, ool

8 - Bastmess-type astivities £ 459337

Towd revemat binds piy 2

{A) 1,345,000 City of Franklin, Rentocky Water and S2uer Revenue Refunding
and Impeovement Bonds, Series 2009, dated October 13, 2009; fully
registered bonds in the denominxion of 55,000 or any inlegral meliiple
thereof; maturing on December 1 in annusl installments of $125000 to
S160,000 through 2024; interest pavable semi-annuafly on Juns | and
December 1; ismed to curvently refund cerlain cvtaandmg lease purchase
ebligations and finace (he construction of improvements ta City’s water and
ST &3 stem, sedured by water and sewer gy stem revenass

(R} $3.260,000 City of Franklin, Kentucky Water and Sewer Revenne Refimding
Bonds, Series 2012, dsted July 24, 2013; fally regisiered baads in the
denomination of 83,000 or any integral muluple thereof, maturing en
December 1 in annual ingtallments of $135,000 to $330,000 through 2033;
interest payshle semi-annavatly en June | 2nd December | issned to cumently
refurd the City's oulstanding Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Serizs 2004;
secored by water and savwer system revenis.

CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 3¢, 2016

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES {Comtinuzd)

Totad grofact costs were approvimately $4,000,000 and 1be Authodly delivered a
cerificate of occupancy issued by the Public Profection Cabinet, Department of
Housing, Buildings and Constroction to Quad‘Graphics, Inc. on Decernber 3, 2010,
Waoeld Codor USA, LLC, a subsidiary of World Coler Press, Ine, was acqired by
Quad’Graghics, Tnc. va July 2, 2010,

On December 3, 2010, the City {holder™) and Auvthonity ("maker™) entered inte a
Promissacy Note in the peincipal amount of $4,000.009 (see Note 3). As of June 30,
2016, the City has recorded & note receivable from the Authorty and umeamed
revenwes of $3,548 353 in the General Fund

The following is a schedale, by year, of fiture note pintnents 1o be Teceived from the
Authority pursaant to promissory pote repayment terms:

Yoz Fotra

=3 3] Prizipal Iezeves] Tota)
2017 313382 $ 267617 3 12930
218 143353 pALN 95wy
m1e 155115 244534 333,533
el ] 167207 132032 333933
22 181,752 g4 393553

M 1159804 40,121 1,553,535

2027-2931 143527 2153937 1HA AL

3 3476055 § 210558 3§ SHEA5Y

NOTEG.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCTAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016

LG

TERM LIABILITIES {Continued)
Annual Debt Service Requiremeats

The annual requirensends (o amortize Fongterm debt cutstanding as of June 30, 2016
are as follows:

Vem Foleg Chrnmreen?ed Activities B s TP Aetnitis Oropms ATl

pF="33] Progpad brdzest Iri Jryea Priizal Breved

217 £ 354 3 Tian S 1M § 3589066 5 13
Fall Pt Lo EER Y 111,337 £, M5BT
213 8245 10338 1H I
MM 13041 WP pIEARE]
par3 16640 GLely At
2722026 A 38390} 32233
pl] - R LY 2

bt = = RERTE} KERIES

SA4HLEX 3 201 S 414028 S 113003 £35 £ FRRIIAE

Endustrial Development Project Fi 2

On Apuil 1, 2010, the Criy ¢ntered into 2 54,000,000 Genaral Obligation Note to fund
the construction by the Franklie-Simpson Jadustrial Authonty { Tndusirial Authoeity™}
of an addition 40 an ¢xisting manulacturing facility to be leased to World Coloc (USA),
LLE ("Woedd Coder™). Oa December 24, 2013, the Clty enterad inio a $3,572,008
Gemeral Obligation Refunding Note with Fraoklia Bank & Tiust Company, to pay olf
the outstanding prrgipal batance of its JP Morgan Chase Bank General Obigation
Refunding Note, Series 2010, dated June 30, 2010 The Refinding Mote was issued by
the City to reduce future note debt senvice requirements duz ta a lower fixed interedt
rate on Refonding Note

On March 8, 2010, the City, Counly of Simpson, Keotucky (“Ceanty™), and [ndustrial
Authority entered ino an Intedocal Agreernent Regarding [ndustrial Development
(Talerlocal Agreement”) relating ta the Woadd Color industrial development project
Pursusnt to loterdacal Agreeuent, the City and Coundy agreed fo pledge, annuatly, all
amoumts necessary fi profect constructfon and annual debl service Tequirements. The
Industrial Autharity, anwner of project real property, entered into a lease sgreement with
Woarld Cobor for lzase of peojecd real property.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016

INTERFEND RECETVABLES AND PAYABLES
[nterfund receivables and payable as of Iine 30, 2014 are as follows:

Intafd Irterfond
Recenattey Fanshles

$ 3 3 30593

cvekipmed Revobricg Loz Foad 32593

Coavmmeity Detveloprast Feosd el
e v Femd £3
Toal goveroentad fnlds 2393} 83351
Propuictuy Fusds
Wata ;i Wasenzia Funl 538 2642
Szmitatica Foed == 5350

535 13
Tout proqrictay fomeds i 812, 39128

Thesa balances resulted from the time 113 between the dutes that (1) interfund goods
and services are pranided or relmbursabie oxpenditures occur (2) transsctions are
recotdad in the accounting systens, and {3) payments between funds are made,

INTERFUND TRANSFERS
Interfurd treasfer s fos the eir ending hurwe 30, 2016 are summarized as follaws.
TrafasIn Treidhers Ot

Gaarmrial Frnds
o] Femd 5 250,00 § 2R%e
Spevid Reveroie Ford
Greasbwae-Shady Resd Cemetery Frod 125 003 -
Sermaiter Fund 5995 -
Pamemad Frod
Greeriran-Shnty Rest Cersstiny Perperma] Feod = 300

Total goverrementa] fonds 273569 235936

Propicoy Funds
Fiber Ot Frand - 2 5000

2785555 274555
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CITY OF FRANKLAN, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016

INTERFUND TRANSFERS (Coatinued)

Transfees are usad to (1) move revenues from the fund that statnte or budpet requires o
callect them o the fisid that statue or budget Tequires to evpend them o (2) use
unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund 1o fnane vaious peograms
accounted for in gther funds in secardsnce with budgelary anthorizations

RETIREMENT PLAN
County Emplayees Retirement System
Plan Deseription

Tha County Employees Reticement System (CERS) is a cost shanng multiple~smployer
defined bensfit pension pian created by the Kentucky General Assembly, pursuant to
1he provisions of Keatwky Revised Statule (KRS) 78 520 CERS is administered by
the Baard of Trustees of Kentscky Retirensent Systems (KRS) and covers mbstantially
ali regular full-time City employees (members) employed in ponhazardous and
hazzzdams duty pasilions. The KRS jsoes a publichy asailabie anmugd repact that
includes finsncisd statements and required supplementary information for CERS. That
Teport may be oblained at hitps Mlaret by gav.

Benefits Provided

CERS provides for retitement, health innmance, disability and death benefits to plan
members. Members are vested in the plan after five years” service credil Retinemient
henefits may be extended to beneficitrics of plan msembers under cenlsin GrCumstantes.
Cost of living adjustments (COLAs) are provided ad the discretion of the State
Legislature.  Semate Bill 2 of 2013 ¢liminated ali future COLAs unkess the State
Legislature so ssthorizes oo a biennial basis and eitwer (1) the system ds over L1004
funded or (ii) the Legislature appropeiztes sufficient funds to pay the increased Liability
for the COLA. For retirenxnt purposes, employess are grovoped into fheeg tiers basad
on hire dare. Tier | includes plan membens whost pasticipation began before
September 1, 2003, Tier 2 inclodes plan members whase participation began on or afler
Seplember §, 2008 tut before Januasy 1, 2814, and Tier 3 inclodes plan members
whase participiion began on of alter Janwsy 1, 2014,

CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 36, 2016

RETIREMENT PLAN (Continuzd)

Dzath tenefits are provided for both death alier retirement and death prior to
reliremad  Members recciving a moanthly benefit based on st least four years of
creditable semvice wre eligible for a $3,000 death benefit  Beneficlaries of daceased
members are eligible for a manthly benzfit if the member was (1) eligible for retiremenl
al the 1ime of daath ar, {2) under the age of 33 with o least £ moaths of service credit
and cumently wovking for a pasticipating agency at the time of death or (3) no longes
warking for a perticipsling agency but at the time of death Ead at least 144 maths of
senvice credit. [ the beneficizry of a decessed active mamber s not eligitle for 2
moothly benefit, the beneficiany wWill receive a lump sum paymeat of the member's
contribitions and amy accumulated imlerest

Meembers participating before August 1, 2004 may retire oa account of disabiliy
pronided the member bas 2t least 60 months of senics credit and is pol eligible for an
unseduced benelit Additienal senviee eredit may be a3ded fow computation of benefits
under the benefit formula  Members participating on or after August 1, 2004, but
befors Janvary 1, 2014, may 1¢tire on aceount of disability provided the member has at
least 60 mooths of senice credit Beoefits are compurad a5 the higher of a %5 of final
rate of pxy (2% noahazardaus, 25% hazardeus) or the amount calculated under the
benefit formula based upea asctual senvive. Members pardicipating on or after Januuy
1, 201$, may retire on account of disability provided the member has at least 60 months
of sendce credit The Wypothetical account which inchudes member contributians,
employer conmibutions and Interest ¢redits can be withdrawn as a Tump sum or an
annuity equal to the larger of a % of the member’s menthly final rate of pay (20%
monhazardous, 25% hazardaus) or the anemitized hypathetical accomt into a single life
annuily optics. Members disabled a5 a result of a single duty-related injury or act of
violence rzlated to their job may be eligible for special benefits.

Contributions

Employee contribution rates aze set by staules goveming he KRS and may only be
changed by the Rentucky General Assembly. Pardicipating emplovers are required to
contribute al an actwanially determined 1ate.  Per KRS Section 61.565(3), pommal
¢ontribution and the actuarially accrued lisbiliny contnbution rates shall be determined
by the Board of Trustees on the basis of the annual actuarial valuatien last preceding
the July 1 of a new bicanium, The Board may amend contritidion rates as of July 1 of
the second year of a biznaiun, if i1 is determined on the basis of & subsequent actuarial

NOTES.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

NOTES TQ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016

RETIREMENT PLAN (Coatinued)

Tier 1 pon-hazardous members are ¢ligible to retire with an unreduved retirement
banafit at age 65 with four years of senvice credit or afier 27 years of senice credit
regardless of age. Benzliis are determined by a tenefit formula calculation based on
fina} compensaton times beoefit factor times years of service. Tier § final compen-
sation is the average of the five highest vears” camings, benefit factor is 1.20% for
members parlicipating prior to August [, 2004 and 2,00 %4 for menrbers perticipating on
or after August |, 2004 and before September 1, 2008, Reduced henefits for casly
retirement are 2y ailable at ags 35 with Give years of senvice credit or at any ags wilth 25
years of senice eredit Ther 2 pon-hazardous nembers arg eligibde to retire with an
wnredhced retiremenl benefit al age 65 with five vears® senvice cradit or at age 57 basad
on thz Rule of 87 - sum of senice years plus age equal 87, Final compensation for Tier
2 benefit formula caleaiation s the average of the 1zt complete Tive years’ eamings
arid benefit fachor is an increasing percent based on senvice at retirement plus 2.040% for
eachyear of service over 30, Reduced benefits for early retitement are available sl age
80 with 10 vears of senvice. Tier 3 non-harardous menthers ane eligible o retire with
an unreduced retirement benefit at age 63 nith five years™ senvice credil or o ags 57
based en the Rule of 87, Tir 3 members are not eligidible for redoced retirement
beosfits. Tier 3 is a hybvid cash balance plan When a member is <ligible 1o retire, the
beefit is cakoulated based on the member’s accumulated account balance, A member
eains seqvice credit for each month conlcibuting 19 e plan. Upon retirement, the
hypothetica! acount, which inchides member contribulions, ¢mployer contriteions
arnd interest eredils ¢an be withdrawn in a hmip srm o annuitized into 4 singla life
anonity option.

Tiee | hazardous members are eligible 1o retird with 2n unredueed retirement benzfit at
age 53 with five years of service credit or after 20 years of service cradit regardless of
age. Benefits are determined by sbove benefit fvmula  Cakulation is hased on
average of the three highest years' camings {final compissition), a 2.50% beosfiL
fzctor and years of senvice. Reduced benefits for early relirement are availshle at age
30 with 15 years of service eredit. Tier 2 hazardous members are eligille (o retiee af
any age with 23 years of senvice or o2 aze G0 with 3 vears of sendee ceedit Benefit
formola caleulstion is based on averags of the three highest complete years’ eamings,
an increasing percent benefit fxctor based oo senvive at retirement, and years of service.
Reduced benefits for eatly retirement are available of age 50 with 13 vears of senvice,
Tier 3 hacardous menibers are also cligible 10 retire at amy age wilh 25 years of senvice
ar A age 60 with 5 years of service.  Tier 3 members zre mot gligible for reduced
relirement henefits.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

valuslion that amended coatribulion rates are mevessary to satisfy requirements
determined in avcordance with aitwaial basis adopled by the Boad. The namial
comribition tate (the percent computed of employee craditable compensation) shall be
determined by the enlry age normal cost funding method  The actuzrially acemed
Liability shall be determinad by actusdal methad coasistent with the methods prescribed
for detezmining e pomial comtnbation rare. The scfuadally acoreed liability
contribution shall be computed by amestizing the 1otal vafindad sctusnially acereed
Lizbility over a period of 30 years wing the levelperceatage-of-payrolf amaortizatioa
method  Admintstrative costs of CERS are financed through employer conbributions
any investment camings

Plan members participating in CERS on or before August 31, 2008 (Tier 1), with
nonhazsrdous and hazardons duty positions, were required to contribute 5% and 8%,
respectively, of their annual craditsble compensation. For plan members who began
parlicipating on or alter September 1, 2008 but before Taonosry 1, 2004 (Téer 2),
contribution rares are 6% {ponhazardeus) and 9% (hazardous) of aomal creditable
compensation. The additional 1% &5 depasited 10 an sceaimt created For the payment of
health insurance benefits under 26 USC Seclion 401¢h) in the Peasion Fund (Kentucky
Administrative Regulation 105 KAR £:420E). Pl members participating on, or after
Jamiary 1, 2014 (Tier 3), were required (o contribote ta the hybeid cash balsnce plan,
Plan members and emplovers contrbute a st percentage of craditable compensstion
into thy member’s sicount  Members contnbute 3% (nonhazsedons) and 8%
(hazardous) of their annual creditable compensation and 1% to the health insurance
fund which i3 not credited to the membar's account and is pot zefundable, Emplovers
conttibite 4% (nonhazardausy and 7.5% (hazadous) of creditable compensation into
member's hypothetical account.

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the City contributed 17.06% (nonhazardous - 12423
pension;, 4.648% inswance) and 32.253% (harardeus — 20.26%% pension; 1269%
insurance) of ¢2ch entployes’s ereditable compensation to CERS, in sieordanee with itx
actuarially determined cordribution rate. The Citv's employer's contriburions to CERS
for pension bencfits for the year ended June 30, 2016 were SH52495.
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RETIREMENT FLAN (Coatinued)

Pension liabifities, Pension Expease and Deferred Quiflons of Resources and
Deferved Tnflows of Resources Relxied to Pensions

At June 30, 2016, the City reparted a Habdliyy of $6,703,131 for ks proparticnate share
of the net pension lisbitity. The net pension Liability was measred as of Fupe 30, 2015,
and the 1aal pensioa liabitity usad to ¢alenlate the net pension liabilily was determingd
by an sctuarizt valuslion as of that date. The City’s peoportion of the net pension
tishility was based on a projecton of the City”s long-term share of cantibulions ts the
pensicn plan wlaive 2o the projected comnbutions of all participating entities,
autuarially determined At June 30, 2015, the City's propartien was . L1497 percent.
For the year ended Jone 30, 2016, the City recognized pension axpense of $680,436
At Juna 30, 2016, the City reported defermed outllows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related 1o pensions feom the following sources:

Beferred Oatibrms Tkferred Eflows

of Ressmrees of Resvnrces
H dileremee betaesa pgavtad 22 sota)

CIMTIP S £ PUTSD PAE Eve e s 51338 H -
Ifference hermom expeutad =d actzl espariense 93890 -
Chimge of arrosgties 635631 -
Change in proportion & Effamoes tefeoin caopina

cectiiativns enl proportionsta dhare of cortribetions 4797 43,561
Contrimtims e Feay it 63 the raiaremm it

dte of Jma2 30, 235 452 493 -

Tozl $ 123318

The amount shown above for “contribulions subsequent to e measuremenl date of
June 39, 26157 will b revoznired as a reduction of the net peasion liabiliy in 1bs year
ending Junz 30, 2017,

Other amounts reparted as deferred inflons of sesources and deferred outflows of
resowees relatad to pensions wifl be recognized in pension expense as follows

Yeur Endad P 3.
Pl $ 216,930
018 16,9370
2119 1342387
200 174948

£ 743005
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 38, 2016

RETIREMENT PLAN (Continuzd)

rate of return by weighting the expected fuhire real rates of retumn by the target asset
allocation percentage and then adding evpected infiation. The capital market assump-
tions developad by the investment eonaubtant 2re intended fow use over a 0-year
herizon aad may not be useful in sehing the long-term rate of retum for funding
pansion plans which covers a loager imeframe.  The assumplion is intended to e a
Jong-term assumplion and is ot expected 10 chenge abxenl a significsst change in the
aseet allocation, a change in the inflation assumption, or a fundsmental change in the
maket that alters evpocted returns in futwe years  Tha target allocation and best
¢stimates of arithmelie real rates of return for ¢ach major asset class are summuised in
the following table

L oaz-Teorm Fapaital
Assit Class Rea) Rate of Retorn
Cootomd Ey 547 s
Cormmad Firvod Inoocs: 1500 15%%
Raad Retorn (Diversifial
Leflatica Sratepies) 33088 107%
Re2lFatze 43555 35
Abiabira Retorn (Iives éfiad
) 42554 Ut )
B5RL Lot
-0 25 234
Tesal i L1Yi1'}

The loag-term expested tate of retur on pension plan investnwats was established by
the KRS Board of Trustees as 7.50 percent based on a blending of the (actors described
above.

Disconi rete. The discount rate used o measuse the todal pension Nability was 7.50
percent The projection of cach flovis used to delerming the discount rate assumed Pt
employes cootritutions will be made o the carent rale and that contributions from the
City will be made at the actuanally determined contritmiion rite pursuang 1o an
sl valuation in sccovdance with the funding policy of the KRS Boud of Tnistees
and as required to be paid by state statule. Based on those assumpiions, the pension
plan’s fidwizy net position was projected 1o be available to make projected Foture
benefit payments of correat active and instive members. Therefore, the loag-term
expecied rate of retum on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of
rojected benefit pmyments to deferming the kotal pension lishility.
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RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

Actuorial assumptions.  The tolal pension lishility as of June 30, 2015 sotwarial
valustion was determined using the following actuadal assumptions, applied to all
perinds included in the meamrensent;

Inflation 3.25 pereent

Salary increases 4.0 percent average. inchuding inflation,

Investment rate of

retum 7.5 percent, net of pensicn plan investment expense.
incfuding inflatica

Ths rates of mortality used for 2ctive members is RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table
projected with Scale BB to 2013 (muliplicd by 2% for makes and 30% for females)
For bealthy retired members and beneficiazies, the morlality tables usad is the RP-2000
Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 203 (set back 1 year foe
femakes)  For disabled memburs, the RP-2000 Combined Disabled Mortality Tabke
projected with Scake BB to 2013 (set back - years for males) is used for the peried after
disability retireazent

The 2otvarizl assumptions used in the Junz 30, 2015 acarial valuation were based on
the results of an achranial experience stedy performed for the peded July |, 2003
throngh June 30, 2013,

The Fang-tem enpected rate of relum on plan assets is reviened as part of the regular
exporience stdy pepared every five years for KRS, The mest recent anabysis,
perfonmad for the pedod covering fiscal years 2008 throush 2013, is guilived in a
repait dxted Aprit 30, 2014, Several fectors are considered in evatusting the long-teem
ratz of relumn assumption including langderm bistagcal data estimates inkerent in
carrenl market data, and a fog-nommal distribution analysis in which hest estimate
ranges of especled future eal rates of rewan (evpected retun, net of investment
expease, and inllatfon) were developed By the investment consuliamt for cach major
assel class (seg chart below)  These were combined 1o produte the kng-term expatted
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RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

Scrsirivity of the net penston liabiliey to changes in e discorar rate. The following
presents the net penssion Tiabdlity of the City calculsied using the dizcount ratz of 7,50
percent, as well as the net pension Labiliy iF caleulated using a disconmt rate that is 1-
percentage-point lowwer (6.30 percent) or |-prceatage-point higher (830 percent) than
the current rate:

4 Deugeasa Cotend Iisornt 19 lngrense

(6 3034} Rt (23095) (8 505)

City of Frk iv's pet pensin bty
Huardoas 5 362200 $ 2520620 $ 217385
Bochuzdig 4,951 407 5378303 2953680
Fetal S ESIAN S 6NSIM AR

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS {OPEEB)
Plan Description asd Contyribution Tnformation

la addition to the prasion benefits described above in Note 9, the City maintains an
informal retirement plan sthorized by the MayonCemmission, The City does n
issue a separate, publicly availsble OPEB financial repart. City ensplovees wha retirad
priey to May 1, 1938, plus employees/spouses who retired afier May 1, 1988 but whe
¢lected pot da participate in e CERS plan (above), are paild a 3100 per month
tetiremerd benefit. Twenly 1atired City employees are cumently covered under the
plan. Retirement benefits ae financed on a pay as you go hasis. Payments under the
Plan totaled $23,329 for he year ended Juns 30, 2016,

In addition to providing retirement benzfits, the City 21so peavides ¢ertain health care
and [ife insurance bensiits for these retired emplovees and their spouses. The cost of
the retiree Bedlth care and fife nsurance benefits s boms 10075 by the City and is
finaneed on a pay as you ga basis. For the yesr ended Tune 30, 2816, pnyments under
the plan totaled $86,743.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Jizne 30, 2016

OTIIER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPER) (Continued)
Annusal OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The City™s annuat other postemployment bepefit (OPEB) cost (evpense) is caleulstad
bazed on the ansusl requited contributica of the employer (ARC). The City has elected
1o caiculate the ARC and related information using the alternstive measurement mediod
permitted by GASB Stytement 43 for employers in plans with fewer than one hundred
total plan members  The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid en an ongoing
basis, is projectad 10 cover pommal cast ¢ach year and to anwtize any unfunded
actasrial lizbilities (or funding excess) over a period not ta exceed thiny yesrs. The
following tzble shows the companents of the City”s anninal OPEB cost for Lhe year, the
amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the City”s net OPEB obligation:

Aremd yacmeral costrtvtioa 12350
Loteret o eet OFED ohdigati -
Adpstnd o azmiloegia el copintting 1) )
Armin] OFFH cost (agense) 154561
Cootribothios mads {1un
Trurease {Secreasc) i oet OFED otz stiom 32233
Bt OFED eblig=tia—tegeima of yea L Rieny
¥t OTFR ctizatim—ent ol yem [ IRETH

The City’s aanual OPEB cost, tht pereentage of annual OPER cost contributed 1o the
plan, and he net OPER obligation fir fiseat yewrs 2016, 2013 and 2014 were as
follaws:

Fuscsl Pescertage of

Yerz Endad Armal Acmp] OFEB Cod Ret OFFR

¥ 30 OEET Coat Corritvted Oization

216 $14, 145 LIy NS $ 1731

2135 $121 532 1131485 3 8363

N4 5151095 T3 3101833
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPER) (Continuad)

Health insurance premiums « 2015 health insurance premioms for retirees were
used as the basis for caloulation of the present v alue of total benefits to be paid.

Rised on the hisgtorical and expected returns of the City’s shartterm investment
portiotio, a discount rate of 4 percent was nsed. In addilion, a simplified version of the
unit eredit actuarial cost method was used The vnfunded actuarial accrued lishility is
being amortized aver retiree life expeclancy not (9 exceed thiy years. The remaining
amottization peoiod at Jung 30, 2016 was thitty years

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The City offers its emplayees a deferred compensation plan created in sicordance with
Internal Revenus Code Section $57. The plan, available to all full-time City emplayees
at their optiog, pemmits pasticipants to dafer a portion of thefr salary until fture years
The deferrad campensation is not availsble o participants unll) termination, retrement,
Jeath or unforeserable smergency.

The plan's investucnls sre held in trast by Public Employee Brasfit Service
Corporation  Participating emplovees can coabribute to the plan based oa cilher 2
percentage of compensation or 2 fixed dollar amount per pay period up to [00% of the
paticipant's total includibde compensstion or $18,000 for 2016, whichever is less
During the fiseal vewr ending June 30, 2016, coalrbutions mad:s on behalfl of
employees totated 862 038

SOLID WASTE COLLECTION FRANCHISE AGREEMENTS

Commercia) and Residestlal

On September 30, 2013, the City entered inja an exclosive commercial and resideatial
franchise agreement with Scatt Waste Sendees, 1L1C (franchisee), for the collection of
residential 2nd commercial solid waste and wastewaster treatment plant wwaste in the
City. Purssant to franchise agreement for residentish senvdees, the City shall withhold
1G% of the monthly gross Tec2ipts (franchise fae) 1eceived by the City from wlifity bill
pameants stributshle to operations conducted by franchisce, ln additica, City shall
withhold 3% of [he monthly gross receipts as a colfection fee for its bifling and
coflection services pravided  Fer commercial senvices, the franchisee shall bill afl

NOTE 10.

NOTE 12

NOTE 13,

CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OFEB) (Continued)
Funded Status and Funding Progresy

As of June 30, 20186, the sctuatial accsued Liability for benefits was §1,243.606, atl of
which was wmlded

The projection of future benefit payments for an ongoing plan im olves edtimaes of the
value of repartad amounts and assumptions about the probability of occumrence of
events far into (he future. Examples include assumptions about future cruployment,
mortahty, and the healthiare cost reod.  Amounts detennined regarding the fundad
status of the plan and the annual required contribulions of the employer are subject 2
continual revision as actust results sre compared with past evpeetations and new
estimates ore made gbout the future, The schedute of funding progress. presented as
required supplemsntary information fellowing the notes to the financial statements,
preserds muhiyear trend information about whether the zetuanal valoe of plan assets is
increasing of decreasing over time relutive to the actuarial eccrued Habélities for
benefils.

Methods and Assumptioas

Profections of benefits for financial repodling purposes are basad on the sibstantive
plan {the plan as understond by the City amd retirees/sponses) and include the types of
benafits provided at (he tme of esch valuation and the historical patter of sharing of
benzfit casts bedween the emplover and plan members 1o that point. The methads and
assumptions used inchede technigues that are designad o reduce 1he effects of thorl-
term volatility in actuarial accrued Tishilities and the actuariat vatue of assets, consistent
with Lhe bong-term perspective of the caleulations

To: foltowing stmplifiing scsumplions were made:

Afaritol Status - Merital gtatug of members st the caleulation date was 2ssumed to
continee throughott retisement

Afortalify - Life expectancies were based on mantality tables from the Natioaal
Canter for Health Statistics

Healthcare cost trérd rate - The expected rate of increase in heahthesre insurance
premiums was basad on projections of the Society of Actumies long-term
beaftheare trends analysis model A rate of 7 pereent initially, reduced to an
uliimate rate of 3.8 pereent after 19 years, was used
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016

SOLID WASTE COLLECTION FRANCHISE AGREEMENTS (Ceatinned)

commercial and industrial customers and pay ta the City a fee of 1075 of collected gross
receipts for commercial and industrial senvices. The franchise agreement is fox a five
year period beginning October 1, 2013 and ending September 30, 2018, The City
reserves the dight 1o conduct a mid-term review in March, 2016 and this agreement may
be renswed for up to three additional five year terms, vpon mutus] agresnient of both
pasiies.

Industrial

Tn Septanther, 2013, the City entered into non-exclusive industrial franchise azreements
with franchisees fiv iha collattion of industrial solid waste in the City and'or industrial
parks bocated theeein. The industrial franchisee must renit to the City monthly 16% of
the gross receipts received attributable o its operations in the industriat franchise area
The franchise azicements are for a five year periad beginning October 1, 2013 and
ending September 30, 2018 and are renewable for three equal terms at the Cily's
discretion.

INIERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR FIRE PROTECTION

On Junz 21, 2012, the City and Simpsoa County Fiscal Cowrt {*County™} cotered into
an Interlocal Agreement for fire protection and 1elated emergengy senviess. The
County presenthy fumishes basic fire protection sanices within its boundaries and the
City desires to coptract for essential fire fAighting. protection ad envirgency senvices for
the City.

At onset of Interfocal Agresment, the City and County fire depariments merped into the
Frankim-Simpson Fire Rescoe operated, managed and sdministered by the County,
with the Simpsen County Fire Department Chief being the chief officer of the merged
department

Fire Staticn and Equipment

The County shafl have full use of fire station ewnad by City and shall matatain
the stalion and grounds. The City shall relain ownership of the fire station and
shall provide for major capital repairs of staion required during (e term of the
agreement inchuding extensions



NOTE 13,

NOTE 16.

NOTE1T

CITY OF FRANKLEN, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016

EXTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR FIRE PROTECTION (Continsed)
Personnel

Staffing of Franklin-Simpson Fire Rescue will be determined by the Fire Chief, in
coaslistion with the County Judge Executive and the Mayor and City Manager,
subjecd 10 approval of the Simpson County Fizcal Court.

Fingncial Contribotiens

City coatribations 1o the County to ths cost and expense of Frankin-Simpsaa Fice
Rescue shall be at amoaunts per City's adopred budget payabls monthly, hawever,
not kess than $250000 anmually, without the pror written agreement of the
parlics. City contribimions shall be intressed or deergased annnally, based upon
change in consumer pace index or cost of living increases set by Governot's
Oflice of Local Development or comparable govemmental oflice, effective July
17 of sear imcrease or decrease is adopred by applicable stste office, or the
percentage increzse in Simpeoa Counby’s fire deparment budget, whichever is
lower.

Finzncial contritutions to the Ceunty for implementation of Federal, state or focal
mandstory regulations shall be detemined by negotistion  City shali furnish,
withonl cliarge, quaalitics of water and use of fire hydrands as County may 1equire
or be ablz to vsz in ils fire fighling operatiens within the City or County. Cily
shall provide inturance coverage for the fire station faitity, howeser, vehicles
onned or eparated by Comnty located within the station, shall be insured by the
County.,

Term

The term of the agreement is Tor ten vears, undess extendad by mutual agresmenl
or lerminated. The agreement shall be renewed for one s3dilional ten year term
undess, not less than twehve months prior 1o the expization of this agreement,
either party shail provide written notice to the other of its intent to tenminaxe. The
agreement may be terminated by either party by wrilien notice at keast one year
priver ta imtendad lermination

CITY QF FRANKLEN, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016

CONDUIT PEBT OBLIGATIONS

The City bas issved Industeiat Revenue Bonds 1o provide finmcial asistance to private-
sector enlities for the acquisiion and constniction of industrial and commercial
facilitizs deemad k0 be in the poblic injerest  The bonds are secured by the poopeny
financed and are pay able soledy from pavments received on the anderhing modtgage
loans.  Upon repaymaent of the bonds. onnership of the acquired facilities transfers to
the private-secior entity served by the boad issmance, The City is not obligatad in any
marmnee for repaymieat of the bonds  Accardingly, the bands are oot reported 23
lizhilities in ihe accomnpamying finsncial statements

As of Junz 30, 2016, there was ons series of [ndustiial Revenue Bonds oulstanding,
with an aggregate principal amount payahls of 851,787,230,

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTENG PRINCIPLE - IMPLEMENTATION OF GASD 63

Effective July 1, 2014, the City vas required to adopt Govemmental Accousting
Standards Board {GASB) Statement po. 68, Accowonting mad Financial Reparting for
Pensions (GASB 63). GASB 63 replaced e requireeents of GASB 27, Accounting
Jor Pensions by State ond Local Govemwmentol Emplayers and GASB 30, Pension
Piscloswres, as they relals to governments that provide pensions through pension plang
administered as trusts of similar amrangemeats that meet certain criteria. GASB 68
Tequires governments providing dafined benefit pensions to recognize their hong-teem
obligation for pensions benefits as a lishility to more comprehensively and camparably
meanre the annual costs of peasion bepefits. Cost-sharing governmental employers,
such as the Ciy, are requited ta report a net pension lisbility, pension cnpense and
peasicn-related assets and lishilities based on their propoitionste share of the colleetive
amomts for all governments ia the plan.

GASB 68 required retrospective applicalion.  Beginning of vear net position was
adjusted to reflect the retrospective spplicelion.  The adjustment resulted in a
§4,141,806 restatement of beginming net position for governmental activities and
£1,183,154 for business-type activities in fiscal year 2013,

In fiscal year 216, the City delermined delomed outflows of resaurees at June 30,
2113, for contributions subsequent to the measuremant date, inchided contributions for
ths employee health insurancs fund, in emor. As a result, a prior period adjustmizat in
fiscal year 2016 resulted in a $180,354 resttement of beginming net pasition for
governmental activities and §42,197 for business-type activities

NOTE 14.

NOTE 15

NOTE I8,

CITY OF FRANELEN, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL SFTATEMENTS
June 30, 2016

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is expased to various risks of Joss related 10 torts, theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets, enors and omissions, injuries to employees end patura] disasters.
The City maintains cutside insurance coverage (2ither commercial or through a pooted
insurande program) ¢overing cach of those risks of Inss. Management befieves such
coverage is suflicient to preclude any significant uninsured Fosses o the City.  Senled
¢laims did 0ot ¢xeead this commercial covetags in the past thres fiscal years.

CONTINGENCIES

The City has been named as a defendant in vanous Livsuits, Although the outeame of
these 1awsnits is not presently determinable, i is the opinian of the Cily that reselution
of theze mateers will pot have a matenial adverse effzct on the City's finaneial pasitien
Accadingly, no provision for any [ishifity resulting from such litigstion has heen made
in the accompanying finanisl statements.

The City participates in nwmerous State and Federal grant programs. which are
governad by various rules and regulations of the granter agen¢ies. Costs charped 1o the
respettive grant programs are subject to andit and adjustments by the grantor agencies;
therefoee, 1o the extent that the City complicd with the rules and regulations governing
the grants, reftinds of any money received muyy be required and the collectibility of any
related receivable at June 30, 2016 may be fmpaired. In the opinion of the City, there
are aot significant contingent liabilities relsting to compliance with the rukes and
regulslions governing the respective prants; therefoce, na provision has been recorded
inthe accompaming financial statements for such contingencies

In June, 2015, the City Commission voted by resolution to sell and transfee all of the
tangible and intangible assets of its fiker oplic network to the Frarklin Electric Plant
Board (Board) for $2,500,000. The Board assumed day4o-day operations of the fiber
oplic network oa July 1, 2613, The City also is a guarantar of the Board's $630,000
Franklin Bank & Frust commercial revolving draw promissory pote, dated May 14,
2013, issuad 1o facilitate e ransfer of the fiber optiv network froas the City to the
Board The Board's note payable bas a note mstwity date of May 14, 2020 and the
City’s goaranty reawsing in effect until the Board's Franklin Bank & Trust debt is paid
in full
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RECENT PRONOUNCEMENTS

in February, 2085, the GASD issued Sirtement No. 72, Fair Vafue Measrcment and
Application. The requirements of this ststement are effective for financial dxements
for periods beginaing after June 13, 2013, This statement establishes standads for
vatuation techniges and estallishes & hicrarehy of inputs to valuation techniques nsed
to mesure fair value, This siatement alsy requires disclosures to be made about fair
value measurements, the bevel of fair value hierarchy, and valuation 1echaiques

Statement adoption did not inipact the City's financial position

In June, 2013, the GASE issusd Statement No. 75, dccounting and Reporting Jor
Paremploypienr Oiter Than Pensions. The provisions of this stalemsnt are sffective
for fiscal years begioning after Jome 15, 2017, This statement edtablishes new
sceounling and financial reporting requisemsnts for QPER plans provided to coplovees
of state and Jocal governments.  This statemnenl establishes standwrds for recognizing
and measuring liabilites, deferred culllows of resources, deferrad faflows of resources,
and exprosefexpenditures. For defined Genefit OPEB, this Statement identifies the
methods and assumptioas requiresd to profect beaefit pagmoents, discount projected
benzfit pryments 10 actuarial present valoe, and attribuge present vadue to periods of
cmployee sanice,  Note diwbsure and required supplementary  information
requirements of defined benefit OPED also are addressed.

The City fs comemly evalusting the impact that will result from adopting GASB No. 75
and is currently unable to discloss the Impact of the adoption of these standards upon
the finsneial position 2nd remlis of operations.

In Aygust, 2015, the GASE issued Statenient No. 77, Tox Abatement Disclosures, This
statement’s provisions are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015,
The sialeownt requires disclossre of tax abatement information regading a
governnzgnt’s tax abyemwnt agreements and agrecminls cntored iolo by other
governments thit reduce the repating govemvment’s Lax révenmes  New disglosure
information to be disclosed sbout the agreements include brief description informaticn,
the groas dodlar ameemt of (axes abated duning the period and commitments madz by a
governmaent, other than to abate taxes, as past 0f 2 14 abatement agreement

The City is curently evaluating the impact of GASH No, 77 and believes no impact to
\be financial position of the City will result from its adoption.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016

NOTE 19. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On November 30, 2016, the City, as lessee, entered into a kease agresmienl with the

Kentucky Bond Corporation, lessor, foe the purpasz of financing variows inprovements

to the City’s water and sewer sytem. The finsncing agreement amount of $1,190,000

is payablz in moathly lease renial poyments beginning Jenvary 1, 2017 through January

1, 2037. The lease contains an optional prepoyment price.  The finanging agreement REQUIRED SUSPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
does not constitute a general obdigation of the City but granis to Rssor 2 seeuity {Other than Managemtent's Piscussion and Analysis)
interest in project peresnal propetty.

Tn Apail, 2610, the City entered into a $4,000,000 General Obligation Note to fund the
coastriction by the Franltin-Simpsea Industrial Authodty of an addilion to an existing
mantfactuning faility 1o be leased to Werld Color (USA), TLC ("Comprn™). See
Note 6 - Industrizl Descloprwnt Project Financing Tn December, 2016, the Company
exercised its optioa ta purchase the real property. The parchase price totaled
$3,374,103 and the Ciiy's note receivable from the Industrial Authority and Franklin
Bank & Trust Company Gentral Obligation Refunding Note, Series 2013, dated
December 24, 2013, were paid off
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEBULE BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDHLY.
General Fund Genersl Fund
Year Ended Juae 39, 2016 Year Ended June 30, 2016
Variznee with
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Expenltores (coctimoal)

Pibdic servives
Fuldic wodks
Persceal savices
Copiracbaal seyvices
Ratrisls enl sopplics
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Tetod pii moarks
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Originel Fina Positive
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CITY OF FRANKLAN, KENTUCKY

Infrastructure Condition and Mainteaance Data

June 30, 2016

Modified Approach to Infrastructure

The following schedules are presented by the City as supphementxy infoaemation oo
infrastructure assels using the modified approach:

o1
Condtion
Pacy
75-10
-1
i 35-43
Severddy defiiond 0-H
Tersd
Origimal et g
Actial

Syare Fecl of Fowd Az
114,

F5113 P3TH
Sqeae Sqeare Sqmare

_Fect H Fest o i (A
254N 7231 3333080 KL 143549 an
542,354 0éd 121492 0 1,380,448 527
- - 130,045 455 ] 5M
- - - = 1448 £5
L33 1m0 SI6L0% Lty 02 ) 0)

Compyivn o Eximriaden Actud Mentr rvce Prenatatim

D16 Kt 1T 213 2012
3 mIN 5 LM 5 IR S 1% 5 16430
5 250347 32T 5182850 I A RLE) § 2508

‘the condition of the City's reads is determined vsing its Roxd Managenieat and Inspeciion
Prozram (RMIP)  The road conditica is rated fiom 1 to 200 {OCT), with 100 being mew o

recemly paved

It is the Cihy's policy 1o assess the conditioa of the roads at least every three years for cracks,
potbsates, misalignment, drainaze condition and numbec of spesific safety hazasds,

The City bas not changed the mezsurement scale used lo assess and repart the condition of its

1oads for the past 10 years.

The City's goal is Lo have al roads at 90« 109 OCI rating
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General Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2016

Varianee with

Final Bradget
Origmal Final Positive
Brsdet Dhadzet Adtmal (Megating)
Fvcess (deficiency) ol revemics
oFer (Ut} Epend-freas 5. 38729 5 48617 3 93581 3 435223
Over [ancing soorces (ases)
Trzdasn — - 2500000 2,500,500
Trndfasod { { 28300 232823 4
Sake of capinn] asssts L3 RiT) 315 { 1248
Toiad e (BLming
somrres (uses) { 2B 253025)) 2243508 24737336
Hetcbrnga i fond balunes 103233 20355 MM 1991978
Fozd balmces, bogisrimz of y ear 2832943 2832843 LLARne -
Prod badmovces, ood of 1o A 21241 pIRNIZERIE] 3 603729 3 2993973
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS - OPER
June 30, 1016
Actrerial UAAL 232
Actuziz Accrual Uzfiadal Percertaze
Actmaial Viboeof List {Eiy (AALY~ AAL Fusdad Covered of Covarad
Vaiutia Assats i Coals Coa (UAAT) Rty Payicl Faymell
Dusta (2 ( {b-2] ) fWh-ale)
6/33/2011 3 - 5 1335653 1553463 Qg WA NA
612 3 — § 1455928 5 1435328 0 NiA LA
&VHIY NiA His Wia WA Nia NA
332004 HiA HA HA WA N'a WA
6372015 - 3134360 31240606 aGig Nia NA
[Lcabally NiA HA Hra HiA HA NA

N/A « Actuarial valeation oot parformed

Infeamation for prioy years is nal available as the City's first actuarial vatualion was for the year

ended June 30, 2011.
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CITY GF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

SCHEBULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS - OFEB
June 30, 2046

Fiscal Anruzal
Year Endad Employee Required Percentage
Jups 30 Cantributions Contribution Cealributed
11 5 148621 § 158818 93.58%
2012 128804 151,095 83.25%
w13 119,202 151,095 TREIY
2014 113.635 151085 75.21%
2015 139818 113, t4%
2016 122323 98.98%

Information for prios years is not av ailable as the Cily”s first actuasial valuation was performad

for the year ended June 30, 2011,
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS
COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
OF TIE STATE OF KENTUCKY
Last Ten Fiscal Years

016
Actmarialty determined conmbation $ 452493
Contnbotims ia relition £ ke actuanslly dztermined contritution 433 495
Centatation deficiency (excess) s =
City s covered-emplos ee paytodl £ 3205638
Centritntions 25 a percerita 2e of coverad<mphoyee payroll 141205

2015
$ 430450
450450
| I
§ 3,162,511

1428

Wote  This schedule is ftended to presert a 10 er trend per GASH 68 AddiGwul yeuswill be

tepaated a3 they bevame availibla
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

SCHEDIILE QF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE
RET FENSION LIABILITY
COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
OF THE STATE OF KENTUCKY
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2016

Tetal wel penirion Liabehty for Coraty Hmployess

Retirermneet 8y stems S§5834,631445
Ciny s peogortion of (he et peasaa lahdlity REE
City"s proportionste share of the net pension tatehty 5 88 iN
City's coveralempliyee paoll 1 3,205,636
City"s propoctionate share of e ret pension Labzhty a2

perentaze of its coverd-mplig ee poy el pai2 it
Flin fidaciay et position a5 a percenta ge of the total

pensian bty 59.354%

S
$4446.192.755
1166%%
3 5186001

3 3,162531

163,952

otz This scheda's 5 faterded to present a 109 e trend per GASB 63 Addtcad yeass will be

reported as they beviane available.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



Nenmajor Governmental Fuads

Special Reveoue Fonds

1 revenne funds ae wsed ta acommnt for speaifie reverdes tha ae sesticted 1o expenditures for
pertioutar panposes

Greothmm-Shaly Rest Coretery Fund - This fusd 15 wsed to socouat for te adivities of the Greenlyan-
Shedy Rest Cemetery. The cemetery is operated by the City with ingod frem 29 advisery bowrd

Comumty Develogensut Foad - This firnd is used to anoount for the fedeadl comemunity developret block
grant progrem and sate cocnomie development grand progims restnieted for voricas goveroemtal betsdng
207 commanity det edopmend and ecomamis development projects

Muvdetpal Aid Foed - This foeed §s esed to acoomnt for the City's sheee of Lyaid foel ta receipds, miceral 2ad
coal severamee taw reveipts end special mumieipa] road ol boed seceipts restristed for poiblic works <ligible
[N EKY

Feanomte Leaxkopment Revoliing Loza Fund - This fimd is used to accomt for ecomemic developonént
imcentive Jouns to Jocal indugaal tments  Looa reprymerds 212 reshictad to figwre evcoomic devwlopmant
aitevities

Swemwater Tund - This fimd is usald 1y pocoint for reverrses recenvad o Jeelop oad mamin the City's
SO At mand gemernt 8 stem
Permazzot Foads

Pamancnt finds are ustd @ teport tesources that are legafly restrictad ta the extend that caly eimings, mit
Feincipal, ey be used for praposes ot support the reporting poverohent's programs

Fieacis Hanis Cemetery Perpetual Care Fumd - This fimd 13 used to accommt for monies beld in trus from a
memsnial from Francas Harmis to provide for the futue cae end miinteaance of the Greentawn Shady Rest
Camaay

Grecntana - Shaedy Rest Cemetery Perpetus! Cere Fond - This fund is wied to sdovunt fov monies 2ol asde to
provide for the futore care and mamtenenee of the Greenlawn Shady Rest Cemetery.

Fasknt
N -,
Curmtory
Furpeizal Feris

Fanty] LR R
433 aam

25,457
19,161
51597

20y

1111

TLON

1

SHa M) 53012043

- 3 181371
- 322i8

- plet]
53380 94481
= 254743

S 3el a2
p A XT]| p M EQFLEY)

ASSETS

Ol o) c1d eguinalects
Catificaas of depait

NEEE]
aama Lo
Dz frovz ceber fosts
FrepH i
Pactiotd mssets
Cet zod cod sqzinatects

Totad aazcte

CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMATOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 3¢, 2016

Specisd Barerizy

Cometany

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liskatey
Acemios pratle
D o gibur fasds
Accred Gyenas
Tetal lisktrics
Fe=et balences:
amspendtle
Prepaid ity
Perpetat! cme
gl by
Ofer purpimes

Tetad Frad battees

Teta! L84 eol
o] balinies

ASSETS
Cadh o cash egrvalents
Catificrtes of degosl
Tetal assals
FUND BALANCES
Neagendshie
Cemetay mainfenee

Perpeinal care

Total fimd balances

Exil

35419

37853

pEREA

Commart,  Mumopad oot ic
Devchigrzerd Aid Dastgerend  _San®aty i
5 - $171.851 5 - $17809 $133354
- - - 267 25,457
- 19,142 - - 12152
- - s394 ) 51,597
- - - L 2659
= N - 230
.y | A L152389 3522459
5 - § 147331 5 — 3 1397 $151371
222% - - 82 32240
has = J—— —Bled —R182
323% 147331 = 22219 _BLE
- - - LI 2082
I0TH [EE5H] FAR7) ) 13 253703
kL eT! 283 e 132330 331
s 7Lem 1 § Ben 3153543
-82-
CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY
COMBINIXG BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR PERMANENT FUNDS
June 30, 2016
Greantang- Toedd
Francis Hinis Shady Rest Nerwenajo
Cemietiay Cemetary Permenent
Paapetnal Perpetnzl Frends
$ 1.202 § 62,938 $ 0,160
30000 REP R 439221
£ st [ 1 R SV K
1 51,202 - s 3122
438173 438173
i....51200 5 453199 § 509381

23,




CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHHANGES TN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Svcid Bexomss
Sukipd
Comtery. A fats
Peoczes
[ s | 5 - H - $172471 s - s - 517280 .
Chapes fr arhes e services o) - - - 214042 317513 s - 3122401
Ceetriutiory - - - - ~ - — TS
En stk Ecem n - i - - m l;;{;: ';:;'l‘i
At 625 = = JR—— = J—_1 — 625
Teul vwins $1154 - 173 %3 - 221042 431.%1 i s
Exguoire
Qe
Fultic varks = - 23591 - 1937219 53228
< iy services 2747 - - - - 478 = ;i;;g
Coprad iy - - 31438 = - _nay - s
Tetst expustass 21478 = Annont J— 33,703 I3 28 LN
Excess (f2fvionny ) efiamss
merimbyaxaitza LSMIM = (137895 = 33013 (28085 13455 na0y
Otar fimemting S 4 (363}
Trazsfasi 18405 - - - w95 HESH — 218935
TramsBas oot —_ = = I R J—— = oMb (L 3@
Tetal cots Frsgnciza
sinaces (61} £500 - - - 3953 285,95 S50 1293
Netcherze i1 find bidazien 364 — 12 - 131323 ELBE:) e84 5T
Find batences b
Yeur 5213 3a791 170723 31593 _ = I _amal .
Frodd balases, ord of yaor 5.31842 538794 FEEYE3H .9 21500 FSIOETH PR 1a11
EIN
CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENFUCKY CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES Greenlawn - Shady Rest Cemetery Special Revenue Fund
NONMATOR PERMANENT FUNDS Year Ended June 30, 2016
Year Ended June 30, 2016
Vartzmee nith
Greerlinn- Totad Fina! Budgel
FriaacisHanis Shady Rest Noamapr Original Find Fostive
Cemetay Caometery b, L Bulget _Badset _Adesl iMezative)
Perpetual Perpetysl JR 1. -
Revennes Revemues
Investment incame s 363 5 1822 $ 2391 Charges for sales aned senvives 5 6350 s T6,3A 5 9350 5 100
Coanibutions = 10,100 10,100 Investment mooms 63 3 2 39
Mizcellinecas 10 650 623 ( 3
Tota) reversaes 3] L1.923 15491
Total revereaes 63,653 17213 Q134 16,941
Expendtures
Currest: Fapend,tores
Commimity sarvices 25 — 25 Current:
Coenaemity savices
Excess of evenms over expendibires 538 11,923 12465 Personad services 108 8797 8292 453
Contrectaal services 182,590 183,351 182031 1,480
Ocher finarcing uses Materials and sapglies 1300 2468 1227 1,241
Trzasfers cut - { 200 30000 Admaristrative overbesal 44816 44,846 41845 —
Onber £533% 8343 1023 {. 21820
Net champe in furd halance 333 8928 9460 Total commanity
sanices 242031 pILEIHS 247478 1,037
Fund balane, hegimning of year 3664 449.73] 493913
Dikviency of revermes wider
Fud balaace, end of yeur § ... 51007 3 sieiie 3 M3 expendiires (1m0 171301 ( 15A3Y) 17,978
Drkar financing somrees
Transfers in 184000 184,000 185,00Q =
Net change in fund halimee 11,680 14,653 3267 17,973
Fusd belaoe, beginamg of yeu 3213 3213 3213 =
Foad babince, erd of year H 6333 & 1eo & RS 5. 17918

-85 -36-



CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Municipal Aid Special Reveaue Fund

Year Ended June 30,2016
Variznee with
Firral Badget
Onigiaz Findl Posilive
Rodzet Budzet Actual {Nzgatve)
Reiemaes
letagovarrmeral
Ligesd faed s 5 183,14 318165 s 15§ 1185}
Mrera md coad saverence tax 730 10,4265 10,593 455
lavesteert oo 359 rEN 134 { 55)
Ttal redemoes 11716 L173384) 123088 { Ty
Espendtizes
Cemrt
Frblic wres 20600 285003 263337 15443
Cagitad ontlay 12wy 3pans 31485 -
Tetel eqpemdtires 24130 315425 30933 13493
Encess (defitorsy yof revernaes
over (uad) expan Ltres { VA MR} ( 127597) 155
Fud halamce, bhecimrmg of yeor 17723 17 170,723 -

Feoud bodanate, enof yeu $__ 5143 f Y Y 3 2R3 5 1454

87

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Faterprise Funds

Enierpeise funds are nsed 10 account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar 1o peivate business entemeises where e intent of the Cily's management is that the costs
of proniding goods or senvices to the general public on a coalinuing basis be financed o
secovered primasily throngh user charges or where the City's managzement has decided that
periadic determination of nel incame is appropriate for sccountability porpases

Water and Wastewater Fand - Thiz fimd is used to account for the activities of the Water and
Wastew ster operations

Sanitation Fund - This fued is used 1o accomnt for the activities of the City's sanitation and
landhill operations

Fiber Oplie Fund - This fond is used to ececunt for the activities of the City's fiber ogdic
operations.

CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

BUBGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDLLE
Stormwater Special Reveaue Fand

Revermes
Charges fov sales 20 sanvices
Frees and forfeitunes

Tetalievewses

Expendiures
Currert
Publie works:
Persiail shvises
Contravhag] senvioes
Materists amd supplies
Oitey
Total poblic werks

Cagital outlry
Tetd expenditures

Excess (deficiency yof reverexts
over (teder) enpendinmes

Oba [inawing sacrees
Trzsfers in

Net charnge in fund balince
Fud balamee, beginning of yeu

Fund bulaiee, end of yeu

Year Ended June 30, 2016

Vaeiaewe with

Fin3i Budpet
Original Frnil Positive
Brlact Fhadest Actual Mgt

5 219000 F 219000

3 217236 [¢1 1,774y

- 7487 6816 £047

2300 2450 24002 ¢ 2418
16,779 118,778 12795 ¢ 1013)
11,573 15943 30,02 15918
6,650 6,953 4,549 26,404
4050 4050 341 1.7
719,152 2357125 151703 11015
1800 - - -
257,452 2335725 193,769 2016

( 3845n 9.245) 30333 19558

100,000 10000

61548 20,955

2596 [ 4

132,323 054

; Hs 5 i

A 13039 f_ 3951

CITY OF FRANKEIN, KENTUCKY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

Op<rating revenues
Charges for sakes and senvices
Weater division
Wastaw ater division

Totik operafing revenues

NnOpTHmE [EVenes
Investment ineome
Sales of assets
Miscellmevas
Grard reveraze
Beord proceeds

Tetal nagopsrating
restmts

Tedel revenues

Faperalitures
Water dinvisten
Frodactioa
Persomal services
Centractal sarvices
Muterials 20d supplies
Oibar

Tital warer production
Drstritetion
Persomal sevices

Cogtiatnsd senides
Muterials and srpdies
Oy

Tetdd water distritution

Water and Wastew ater Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Oxigmal Final
Bodeat Tnd ret.

Verizmcewith
Final Buadaet
Fuative
Acheal (Neg:tive

52471116 & 2570784
210728 2.159.53)

8 1827 £ 100.9i7
2 37 169 147638

4373339 43730115

1500 73500
- 2113
5,500 185,331
102,000 -
000 -

4938870 23 355

5,508 { 1.99)
i 263 4.7
113,044 { 72237

16,400 194,946

115853 { 19,073)

5204732 4,925 35)

5054733 129477

ESi b 350,102 333,731 { 2,629}
197,818 187,932 172,820 15,162
160,255 164,009 134425 23,384

765 2034 69,739 2273
771916 F75,147 731753 437
494,442 474.22) 470,132 4058

68,364 71,850 SL7 19,051
223,520 220,283 167,852 35IH

17,369 AL

210,163 183434

RS .. - )
IR, 464 74.570




CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Water and Wastewater Fend
Yezr Ended June 30, 2016

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDLILE,
Water and Wastenater Fund
Year Eaded June 30, 2016

Variznie with
Finaf Bodget

Verinee with

Final Fastive Fizal Bod gt
Bualset Pudget Actual Mevative) Origina} Finsl Poative
et Bualed, Actual Mezitive)
Experditures (contimsed)
hlcter remding and msintenance
Personad senvices $ 64807 5 64791 LI A | 5 1,620 Exvess {defickncy ) of reverses
Centractal services 11,445 13927 9.834 4,601 over (vnder]) evpenditires S . 8184 i§ 384930 8 457997 4 842930
Mteijals end supplies 194,500 185,071 182633 3,433
Orhar L6% 1982 953 UM Add
Principal peyments 432525
Totalwater meter resdog Capita! olay 5, inclndmg < 2pitatined Tebor 2ad miterials 00,232
a1 maintegance 272432 26,769 2565% 10173 Less
1eprecistion expense (L0419
Tea2d viater dnvision 1.850513 L8255 18693803 123534 Asmartization espense [ anily
Wastewzter division: Chinge in oet pasition 345571
Ticitarzd
FPersanal services 336,320 297,857 I 4900) Net positico, begizaing of year 17,756,722
Conbiatusd scrvives 314,363 325048 37247 10,501
Mitens end applies 85,330 9,524 74,227 14097 Fuise period adjasment . 42187
Chlmt 37,734 63 202 R C 30830
et position, hegirming of year, tesared 12,714,535
Total wadawater tresiment 178,332 R34 193383 { 1030y
Nel position, end of yeur $ 13239045
Collection and rehobilitaticn
Personal services 283,037 230226 29148 { 7,182
Contractyal savices 535,162 39408 3047 1351
Mateni abs end supplies 61275 48,997 2441 2455
Other 373 AR53 330 363
Tetal wastew ater collection
and rehabilitatica 436858 332694 361,136 19,338
Totd wasten ey diviston __1,215.230 162735 1158301 9.3
Adminisrtive overbead SHLLM 334100 354 100 -
Dbt saavive
Principal 432315 432523 432325 -
Taterest 130,759 130,759 130,027 672
Adminisrative fees 30 301 302 el
Total deltd service 361737 363,731 563,114 673
Captal eutlavs LOY) 333 1153222 623247 {4003
Tetal expenditures 5385335 330,134 4595741 13433
-50- Al
CITY OF FRANKLEN, KENTUCKY CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY
BUBDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Sanitation Fund Fiber Optic Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2016 Year Ended June 30, 2016
Varimee with Neririca with
Fral Bl Yeul Badget
Crigimal Firal Foitive b=y Positite
Doodaet Iradzet Actl (Neaative) Bodst Brabret Actasl {Reratived
Tetal reversats % - b = } = 3 =
Chges [:
Hazd plokeop § O 6R0N $ 655549 5§ 6482 i5 6077 Total expondewes - - = -
Coeflactina foes 19313 18548 13,513 968
Fresend fofeirmes 125 26019 25701 { G Exoess (deficfeny) of 1ot amses
Trachise foe 165000 174533 152,145 315 over (Baki) exqpodieres - - - -
Totad operating resermes 348,575 26,075 875201 ( 915} Oubey fnacuind sz ecs (pses)
G oo ke of assets —_ 25000 34,07 (2193293
NoanperTiong evenass Trastayced - = __23meay  (23%000)
Invevimet mcame 35 .. 22 I ) ) § J— |
Tot cekey frumeid
Tetefravemaes 243925 £76.478 87554 { S2) STEes (0ses) = 2 300000 219533y 463523
Experdtoreg Eucess (defloiersy) ef revaroes
Seitetim opaativas 2] vthsy T g, smces aver
Fersooal services 12000 8,243 8557 2m {unda)operdinges i et
Cocfrmtad savices G400 €57450 30451 6553 franceg uses S = 5250000 (2055293 (4463530
Aderndrative overtoad 2330 23 200 203,37 ol
Add
T expanliores £45 50 #1513 £48 318 2201 Copid eolays -
Leas
Excess {(defloieney) of raveroes Dogueciation expenss =
ora (i) epentires [P K 7 T R S ) s 5 6217
Chimge Tt position 219537
et prsition, beginming of yeor i 11,355
Betpostion begeteg of year 2133373
¥t position, and of yer [ S
Mt prsitioa end ofyear s -
-02. 93-




